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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE”"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market desighed to accommodate small & medium sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is
a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of
this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the”Directors”) of SK Target Group Limited (the”Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the"GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
TRHRES

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual results of SK Target Group
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 May 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 May 2019, the revenue of the Group
decreased by approximately 22.9% as compared to the financial
year ended 31 May 2018. The revenue generated from the
manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junction boxes
decreased by approximately 24.2% while those from the other
building materials and services business segment decreased by
approximately 45.3%.

In view of the decrease in revenue in the manufacturing and
trading of precast junction boxes segment, the Group is
exploring opportunities in the diversification of business risk with
a view to maximising returns to the Group and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole in the long run. As part of the
Company'’s diversification plan, the Company has expanded into
the Japanese catering services in Hong Kong. The business
commenced in May 2018, and recorded a revenue of RM3.0
million for the year ended 31 May 2019. The Company also
commenced sourcing services of materials during the year and
recorded a revenue of RM0.3 million for the year ended 31 May
2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

After the change in the Malaysian Government in May 2018,
there were changes in policies to fulfil the election mandates of
Mr. Mahathir Mohamad, the Prime Minister. The changes in
policies may create more uncertainty to the growth of the
economy of Malaysia in the foreseeable future. Moreover, other
factors which include labour shortage and dependency on
foreign workers, and the rising production and transportation
costs may exert pressure on the Group’s business operations.
Nevertheless, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the
overall business prospects.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRHRES

On 24 February 2017, the Group entered into a legally-binding
collaboration agreement with a ready-mix concrete supplier (the
"Ready-mix Concrete Supplier”), a company which holds a
valid batching plant licence for the supply of ready-mix concrete.
The estimated production capacity of the mini-batching plant
operated by the Ready-mix Concrete Supplier is approximately
26,400 m® per annum. However, the management of the Group
considered there is no imminent need to commence the
collaboration arrangement. As such, during the year, the Group
continued to source ready-mix concrete from third party
suppliers, and the Group and the Ready-mix Supplier had not
implemented the collaboration agreement.

The management of the Group is committed to looking for
business opportunities that would generate long-term returns to
the shareholders of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
TRHRES

PROSPECT
The Group is taking positive steps to maintain the Group's
business operation and to build sustainable business operation
for the Group in order to maximize the shareholders’ return of
the Company.

The new Malaysian Government has implemented changes in
policies, cancelling or deferring infrastructure and construction
projects; together with the Sino-US trade war continuing, the
Board expects these factors may create more uncertainty to the
growth of the economy in Malaysia in the foreseeable future. The
Board will continue to monitor the business environment in
Malaysia and make appropriate adjustments to the Group's
operations should there be a need.

The Directors are also looking for appropriate investment
opportunities, especially on the vertical integration opportunity.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all
shareholders and Board members for their support and efforts to
the Group. | also express my sincere gratitude to our customers
and business partners for continued support, as well as to my
colleagues and staffs for all their dedication, loyalty and
contribution to the Group.

Loh Swee Keong

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 August 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group manufactures and sells precast concrete
telecommunication junction boxes and precast concrete
electrical junction boxes under our brand of “Target” in Malaysia.
The Group’s precast concrete junction boxes are used in (i)
telecommunication and electrical infrastructures upgrade and
expansion works; and (i) construction projects in Malaysia. They
are buried underground to deter tampering and are used to
house and protect a junction with telecommunication and
electrical utility connection and distribution access points from
weather, changing elevation underground and provide easy
access for maintenance.

The Group has been a registered supplier or the approved
supplier of various notable telecommunication companies such
as Celcom Axiata Berhad and Telekom Malaysia (“Telekom”)
since 2008 and the registered supplier of Tenaga National Bhd.
("TNB"), the sole electric utility company, in Malaysia since 2012.
Hence, the Group’s precast concrete junction boxes are used in
infrastructure or construction projects involving
telecommunication companies and TNB.

For the year ended 31 May 2019, the revenue of the Group
decreased moderately by approximately 22.9% mainly due to the
policy changes implemented by the Malaysian Government and
the uncertain economic atmosphere which had impacted on the
demand for the Group’s precast junction boxes as well as other
building materials and services.

XBEERESE
REBRBRADRIE RIS [Target | fhg
MERRERTEEEGAaRBERRELTEN
BB AKBEMERRRIEEESRANER
AEMO)EERENEBRARREEZIR &
(NEEFH - CMEEN I TR IEEE - A
REERERREREERE IR EEEN
BERIARSHEREAL  2ZRXALM TS
FEENZE WREREFERE-

REEH2008FRRAZRAMEBEFE LT (M
Celcom Axiata BerhadX Telekom Malaysia
([Telekom |) ) &) 5 {4 FE 75 =k 58 7] 44 /&
& LA K B20124F #£ ATenaga National Bhd.
([TNB] BSRAEATH-—HNENLAAFER
A BRI AL R o At - AR E ) FERR B
TEGRAANS LEER A RTNBEEZES
BEIAE o

HE2019F5A3MBIEFE AEBRABEE
BA#I229% X EHRBRAT BN E D
HEEHRIBENLEREHRAEEHER
BRTEGRUREMEZEMEERBOE
SRIERR S & o

BREEER AT / 2019F | 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFWE DN

Moreover, other factors which include labour shortage and
dependency on foreign workers, and the rising production and
transportation costs may exert pressure on the Group’s business
operations. Nevertheless, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the overall business prospects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue decreased from approximately RM38.2 million for
the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately RM29.5 million for
the year ended 31 May 2019, representing a drop of
approximately 22.9%. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in the revenue generated from the manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes; and the trading of
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and
ancillary services.

For the manufacturing and trading of precast concrete junctions
boxes business, the revenue decreased by approximately by
24.2%, from approximately RM25.4 million for the year ended 31
May 2018 to approximately RM19.2 million for the year ended 31
May 2019. The decrease was mainly caused by the uncertainty
of Malaysia’s economy which had impacted on the progress of
our customers’ projects and the order they place to our Group.

For the trading of accessories and pipes and the provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services business, the revenue
decreased by approximately 45.3%, from approximately RM12.6
million for the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately RM6.9
million for the year ended 31 May 2019. The decrease was
mainly caused by the decrease in sales of steels and pipes.

The Group is exploring opportunities in the diversification of
business risk with a view to maximise returns to the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole in the long run. The
Group has expanded into the Japanese catering services in Hong
Kong in May 2018. It generated approximately RM3.0 million
income to the Group for the year ended 31 May 2019. The Group
also commenced sourcing services of materials during the year
and generated approximately RMO0.3 million income to the Group
for the year ended 31 May 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DN

Costs of sales mainly consists of (i) cost of raw materials and
trading products; (ii) manufacturing overheads; (iii) direct labour;
(iv) crane hiring costs; and (v) food costs. The cost of sales
decreased from approximately RM29.4 million for the year
ended 31 May 2018 to approximately RM21.9 million for the year
ended 31 May 2019, representing a decrease of approximately
25.7%. Such change was in line with the decrease in revenue
during the year ended 31 May 2019.

The total cost of sales from the manufacturing and sale of
precast concrete junction boxes decreased from approximately
RM17.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately
RM14.0 million for the year ended 31 May 2019.

The Gross Profit decreased from approximately RM8.7 million for
the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately RM7.6 million for
the year ended 31 May 2019.

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by
approximately RM1.3 million or 17.0% from approximately
RM7.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately
RM8.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2019.

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly consisted of
salaries, welfare and other benefits, rent and rates, general
office expenses, depreciation and professional service fees. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs
due to business expansion and audit fee and other cost
associated with the development of the Japanese catering
services.

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately RM0.1 million or 5.9% from approximately RM1.2
million for the year ended 31 May 2018 to approximately
RM1.1million for the year ended 31 May 2019.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses mainly consisted
of salaries, welfare and other benefits for sales and marketing
staff and travelling and entertainment expenses. The slight
decrease of selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to
the decrease in commission associated with the decrease in
sales of the manufacturing and trading business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFWE DN

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately RM2.7 million
for the year ended 31 May 2019 (31 May 2018: approximately
RM3.1 million) due to the net effect of (i) the decrease in
revenue for the year ended 31 May 2019, and (ii) the increase in
the administrative expenses incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2019.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operation is subject to general economic and
market risks which may affect the competition and profitability
of construction projects. The Group’s key risk exposures are
summarised as follows:

(@) Fluctuation in the prices of our major raw materials may
have adverse impacts on the Group’s financial results;

(b) The Group’'s revenue is mainly derived from the
manufacturing and sale of precast concrete junction boxes
to its customers for infrastructure upgrades and expansion
work for construction projects, which are non-recurrent in
nature and there is no guarantee that the customers will
place new business purchase orders; and

(c) The Group's cash flow position may deteriorate owing to a
mismatch between the time of receipt of payments from
its customers and payments to its suppliers if the Group is
unable to manage its cash flow mismatch properly.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus of the
Group dated 6 July 2017 (the “Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWE DN

As a manufacturer of precast concrete junction boxes, the Group
has to purchase raw materials from its suppliers from time to
time based on its procurement policy. The Group relies on cash
inflow from its customers to meet its payment obligations to our
suppliers. The Group's cash inflow is dependent on the prompt
settlement of its payments. As at 31 May 2019, the Group
recorded trade receivables amounting to approximately
RM9.9million, the number of trade receivables turnover days was
approximately 175 days which exceeded the credit period
stipulated on the Group's service agreements with its customers
with average trade payable turnover days of approximately 103
days. The Group is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk. For
further details, please refer to note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 May 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents was
approximately RM20.9 million (31 May 2018: approximately
RM21.5 million).

As at 31 May 2019, the Group has no borrowings (31 May 2018:
Nil).

As at 31 May 2019, the Group current ratio was 5.8 (31 May
2018: 4.3), which is calculated based on the total current assets
divided by the total current liabilities. The gearing ratio was Nil as
at 31 May 2019 and 31 May 2018, which is calculated based on
the total interest-bearing loans divided by the total equity.

As at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019, the Group had no bank
borrowings. The Group's financial position is sound and strong.
With available bank balances and cash and bank credit facilities,
the Group has sufficient liquidity to satisfy its funding
requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year. The share capital of the Group only comprises of
ordinary shares.

As at 31 May 2019, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of equity of the Company amounted to approximately
RM3.4 million and approximately RM32.1 million respectively (31
May 2018: RM3.4 million and RM34.3 million respectively).
Details of the capital risk management are set out in the note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 May 2019, the Group has no capital commitments in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (31
May 2018: Nil).

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION
Since a substantial amount of income and profit of our Group is
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit (‘RM"), any fluctuations in the
value of RM may adversely affect the amount of dividends, if
any, payable to the Shares in HKD to our Shareholders.
Furthermore, fluctuations in the RM’s value against other
currencies will create foreign currency translation gains or
losses and may have an adverse effect on our Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations. Any imposition,
variation or removal of foreign exchange controls may adversely
affect the value, translated or converted into HKD, of our Group's
net assets, earnings or any declared dividends. Consequently,
this may adversely affect our Group's ability to pay dividends or
satisfy other foreign exchange requirements. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENRKR DN

CHARGE OVER ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 May 2019, the Group had bank deposits pledged with
banks totalling approximately RM1.0 million (31 May 2018:
approximately RMO0.4 million). These deposits were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
As at 31 May 2019, the Company did not have any significant
investments held.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS, AND
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 May 2019.
There is no specific future plan for material investments or
capital assets as at the date of the report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2019, we had 90 employees who are located in
Malaysia and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The
Group generally recruits employees from the open market by
placing recruitment advertisements. The Group entered into
individual labour contracts with each of the employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Malaysia and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, which cover matters
such as wages, employee benefits and grounds for termination.
The remuneration package that the Group offers to the
employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and medical
benefits. In general, the Group determines an employee’s salary
based on each employee’s qualifications, experience and
capability and the prevailing market remuneration rate. The
Group has designed a review system to assess the performance
of our employees once a year, which forms the basis of our
decisions with respect to salary adjustments, bonuses and
promotions.

AEEBNEERF

M201965A31H - RE BT FIRITHET
GBReaEHA(N0BEESE) (2018F5A31
H:%0488%F) ZEGFERNEHRAER
By AEEN—RRITEEREER

FisERKRE
201955 A31H » AN A B3 5 B £ ] BT #F
BERRE-

EARBRHEUREAREHEARN
EEE

REE2019F5A31H L FE  HELNBER
ALBERBNBEARBEREEZTH - RA
BEEH BMEEARELELAEENTE
RAKFTE -

HZREE
720184 5A31H 2019458318 - A& E
BEEFERKRAE

& & & % B BUR

R201955A3NA WM ESRKAZ KRB ER
AITREENREE AKEBEEENE
BEERESHEAHMSRERE AKRERE
B R P E M E BN B 1T IR R 1053 A 5 80 A D)
HBREEFLENNSETEA EFRE
TE EBERAMEKUILEHEEE -AKER
BERENFHOIREEFE A RBR
BEEN . —RME ARERBEREEN
BA% - B K BE 0 A KE B RY T 55 B B KSR
BERENFS AKECD R —EEXH
B - ULE B RIBFET —IRFE  BEK
BMYHFL AR LAREFTHEMAERE
H) B2 o

HiaEEARADT / 2019F 1 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWRR DN

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as disclosed in
the Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progresses for
the period from 19 July 2019 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 May 2019
is set out as below:

Business Objectives
E$ 3=k

Progress
BER

Expansion on production capacity

EEECHEREEERNER

REREREENER B ZHAEERH2019
F7A198 (EWHE) B E201945A8318 1t
HEMEREKERNLERI>TEHT T

The funds have been used to purchase a few lorry cranes and

junction box moulds. The Group also recruited 24 staffs for
the expansion and renovation works.

EARERE

EHESCRARNBELDEEREEGERA - AEETTRER

RBFTRER T208HB T

Expansion on marketing and sales team

The funds have been used to recruit a new General

Sales Manager and a Sales Executive

18 KT 35 1 S N 8K 6 1B B

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

The shares of the Company were listed on 19 July 2017 on the
GEM by Share Offer (the “Listing”). The Offer Price was HKDO.28
per Offer Share. The net proceeds received by the Company
from the Share Offer, after deducting underwriting fees and
other expenses, were approximately HKD29.6 million.

The net proceeds from the Listing have not been utilised up to
the date of report in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section “Net Proceeds from The Share Offer” of
the announcement “Offer Price and Allotment Results”. The table
below lists out the proposed applications of the net proceeds
and usage up to the date of report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DT

Amount Unutilised

Net proceeds utilised up balance up
from the to 31 May to 31 May
share offer 2019 2019
BEE BEZ

RZE 2019658318 2019F5H31H
S RE R EBALHE REAER
HKD million HKD million HKD million
BEBT BEABT BEBBT
(Note a)

(Htita)

Expansion of production capacity & 48 A T 75 23 K E A%

through
() expanding our Existing h BRREEHERE 7 @) 4.0
Selangor Plant Note (b)
(Htztm))
(i) completing the establishment (i)  FEAKE N ¥ E K BB 7.3 (1.3) 6.0
of our New Kulaijaya Plant and B & Note (c)
(Ki&t(c))
(i) recruiting new staff (i) BHEHMET 2.6 (0.4) 2.2
Note (e)
(Kiitee))
Acquisition of a parcel of land in B8 5 2R Ph 22 g SR AV b 1R 8.4 - 8.4
Southern Malaysia Note (1)
(Kratm)
Expansion of our business vertically #Ei@ B EBRE R T E R 2.7 - 2.7
in the supply chain of the precast &TENHEEREZERE Note (g)
concrete junction box industry e ARV ES (Bitg)
through mergers and acquisitions
Expansion of our sales and R SHE N h 5 B E X 0.8 (0.4) 0.4
marketing team Note (h)
(Kiath))
General working capital —REEES 0.8 (0.8) -
Total et 29.6 (5.9) 237
Notes: HaE -

(@ The unused Listing proceeds have been deposited in licensed (@) ARBA EHAERECSTFRRSRKELTLE
banks in Malaysia and Hong Kong. R RTT

()  The Listing proceeds of approximately HKD4.0 million have not  (b) b7 FT#5 38 494,000,000/ 7T 7201945 A

been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group intends to use up the 31H H AR B A o 2 & B #E720205 11 A30H
remaining fund for expanding our Existing Selangor Plant by 30 A EMRTESBIERREMOBEEH
November 2020. B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

The Listing proceeds of approximately HKD6.0 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group will use up the
remaining fund for completing the establishment of the New
Kulaijaya Plant by 30 November 2020.

In view of the dropping in revenue in the manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes segment, the
management of the Group have a reservation view over the
current timetable to expand the Group’s production capacity. The
Group will closely monitor both the internal and the external
factors and will decide on the expansion of production capacity in
due course.

The Listing proceeds of approximately HKD2.2 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2020.

The Listing proceeds of approximately HKD8.4 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2020.

The Listing proceeds of approximately HKD2.7 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2020. As at 31 May 2019, the
Directors had not identified any acquisition target.

The Listing proceeds of approximately HKDO.4 million have not
been utilised as at 31 May 2019. The Group intends to use up the
remaining fund by 30 November 2020.

The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objectives and will change or modify plans against the changing
market conditions to ascertain the business growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD
There are no significant event after the reporting period.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENREREEREBHMN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Loh Swee Keong, aged 52, is the founder of the Group. He
was appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016 and is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall business strategy, approving annual
budget proposals, and major business decisions of the group. Mr.
Loh has over 20 years of work experience in the precast
concrete junction box industry. Mr. Loh completed his secondary
school from five level education in Tsung Wah National Type
Secondary School, Kuala Kangsar, Perak, Malaysia in November
1985.

Before establishing the group, Mr. Loh established a sole
proprietorship under the name Jackon Trading in 1989, where he
was primarily involved in the supply of ready-mix concrete to
construction companies in Malaysia. In March 1993,
Mr. Loh co-founded Target Precast, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the group which was at that time primarily involved
in the supply of ready-mix concrete to construction companies,
negotiating business with customers and responsible for the
daily operations of the group. In 1995, Mr. Loh, for the first time,
manufactured the moulds using the then existing technology for
precast concrete junction boxes and commenced the production
and manufacturing of precast junction concrete boxes to
customers.

HITES

Loh Swee Keongit4k @ 5255 AASEK
Bl A - B HR2016F10A28B ELZ T MAE
g URARFREZREZEGER HAEE
BEBRE SHTEBREEEERAEH
B E EFEBIRE o Lonfo AN TERDR B T 4%
BITEBABRB20F TE&R Loh £
1985F 11 AR B R EEM I BATsung
Wah National Type Secondary School5e &
BERLRE-

P A 5 B A1 - Lohst A 1A 19894F A Jackon
Trading®) BN —KBELFE 2R EE
EmBRATMEENAHERNER L
199343 A + Loh%t & £ [F A ## Target Precast
(FEENEEZ2ENBRAR) ERFEEM
BEQABERYRERLT HRPARER
RBEAREEKAEEE- 19954 - Lohs &
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENEREEREBHMN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Ka Hei (BBZX &), aged 35, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 27 June 2017 and is a member of the Audit Committee, and
Nomination Committee and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October
2016. He obtained his Bachelor's Degree of Business
Administration in Business Economics from the City University of
Hong Kong in November 2007.

In September 2007, Mr. Yau was employed as an associate of the
assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he
was responsible for evaluating internal control environments and
system processes, and identifying opportunities for improving
companies’ internal controls, operation workflows and integrity
of financial records. He then joined the Bank of Communications
in August 2010 as an officer of the company’s finance
department where he was responsible for, among others,
preparing IFRS financial reports to the head office in the PRC and
external auditors. From February 2011 to November 2011, he
worked as a senior accountant at the assurance department of
Ernst & Young. From June 2012 to August 2016, Mr. Yau worked
as an internal auditor of Kaisun Energy Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8203) a
company engaged in (i) mining and metallurgical machineries
production; (ii) provision of supply chain management for
mineral business, (iii) exploitation and production of coal; and (iv)
securities investment where he was responsible for among
others, (a) preparing internal control report of operational and
financial processes and reporting to the audit committee of the
company; and (b) performing due diligence providing advice of
the operational and financial arrangements for merger and
acquisition projects.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENREREEREBHMN

From October 2016 to February 2017, Mr. Yau worked in Deckers
Asia Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Deckers
Outdoor Corporation (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange) as an internal auditor, where he was responsible for
validating audit on operation and finance management. From
June 2017 to August 2017, Mr. Yau worked as an assistant
account manager of Magico Group Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Properties Group Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1838), a company
engaged in property development and property investment in
the PRC, where he is responsible for overseeing accounting
activities of the company. Mr. Yau is currently finance manager
of Hong Kong company, which engaged in energy trading
business.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (& #&83) , aged 39, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 27 June 2017 and is a
member of Remuneration Committee and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor of
Arts Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2003. Mr. Chu has more than 15 years
working experience in the accounting and company secretarial
field.

Mr. Chu served as a chief financial officer and company
secretary of companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is
currently the company secretary of Sino-life Group Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange (stock code:
8296).

Mr. Chu is a member of (i) the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; (ii) the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; (iii) the Hong Kong Chartered Secretaries; and (iv)
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert (E%E2) , aged 58, graduated from
Pomona College, California, USA with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in 1983. Mr. Ma possesses intensive experience in corporate
banking and private banking in major USA and European
financial institutions. He was previously a vice president of a
renowned USA investment bank in Hong Kong. He is currently a
general manager of Incu Corporate Finance Limited, a consulting
firm, where he is responsible for office administration.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Low Yew Kuan, aged 52, is the Head of Finance of
Malaysia’s subsidiaries. He is responsible for the daily operations
and the financial and accounting activities of the group. Mr Low
obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from
the RMIT University, Melbourne in Jan 2001. He was further
admitted as a fellow of the Institute of Financial Accountants in
the United Kingdom in June 2005 and the Institute of Public
Accountants, Melbourne, Australia in June 2015. Mr Low has
over 28 years of experience in the manufacturing and
accounting field.

Before joining our Group in January 2018, Mr Low worked as
Accounts Manager in the Finance Division of Viscount Plastics
Industry Sdn Bhd for the period from February 1992 to May
2005. In June 2005, Mr Low joined Lam Seng Plastics Sdn Bhd as
Finance & Admin Manager of the company. In May 2012, Mr Low
worked as Finance Manager of the Finance Department in KMC
Packaging Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned Singaporean listed
company. He was later promoted as Acting General Manager in
year 2016. In Sep 2016, Mr Low joined Crown Beverage Cans
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, wholly-owned by listed co. in NYSE, USA-
under Crown as Head of Finance.

Mr. Leung Tze Wai (7 4&), aged 36, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 November 2018. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce (Accounting) from the University of
Adelaide, Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the CPA Australia
and is currently the Finance Manager of the Company. He has
over 10 years' experience in the auditing, accounting and
financial sectors.
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Mr. Ma Hong Chee, aged 51 is the Operations Manager of the
Group. He is responsible for overseeing the production activities
of our production plant. Mr. Ma completed SRP, Malaysia Sekolah
Menengah Tanah Putih, Kuantan, Pahang.

From October 1996 to April 2010, Mr. Ma joined Grobest Frozen
(M) Sdn., Bhd. where he was responsible for (i) setting up the
processing plant operation system; (i) in production planning
and operation; (iii) monitoring purchasing flow and supplier
management flow; and (iv) implementing and managing
marketing programmes. His last position with the company was
manasger.

Ms. Siew Poi Voon, aged 41 is the Factory Manager. She is
responsible for overseeing the manufacturing and operations of
the production activities of the Group. Ms. Siew joined the Group
as a Human Resource and Administration Executive in March
2013 and was promoted as our Assistant Factory Manager in
April 2015. Ms. Siew was subsequently appointed as our Factory
Manager in August 2016. Ms. Siew obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Human Development from the University Putra Malaysia in
July 2001.

From August 2001 to March 2003, Ms. Siew worked as the
Human Resource Officer of YP Precision (M) Sdn. Bhd. where she
was responsible for general human resource functions which
include payroll, training and development, recruitment as well as
matters pertaining to foreign workers in the company. She
subsequently joined the Delcol Water Solution Sdn. Bhd. in April
2003 as a Human Resource Executive. In December 2007, Ms.
Siew joined Jordone Corporation Sdn. Bhd. as a Human Resource
and Administration Executive. She was subsequently promoted
to the post of Assistant Administrative Manager in August 2009
where she was responsible for the company’s purchasing,
advertising and branding (including media and branding) as well
as general administration duties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgRE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 May 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacturing
and trading of precast junction boxes, (ii) trading of accessories
and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental and ancillary
services in Malaysia (iii) Japanese catering services in Hong Kong
and (iv) sourcing services in Hong Kong.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations
of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 38 to 58 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution by principal
business segments during the Year are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review of the Group for the year ended 31
May 2019 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the business review and outlook
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 18 of this annual report.
The discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the Year and the material factor underlying its financial
performance and financial position are set out in  “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 18 respectively.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2019 and the
state of the affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 66.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 May 2019 (2018: Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statement and the Prospectus, is set out on
page 152 on this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during
the Year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity set out on pages 69 and 70 respectively.
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DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

As at 31 May 2019, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution which consists of retained profit and the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RM4.2
million (2018: RM6.8 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the law of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 May 2019.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and
suppliers are key stakeholders to the Group's success. The
Group strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging employees, providing quality products and services to
our customers, collaborating with suppliers to deliver quality
sustainable products and services and supporting our
community.

26

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019

7ok

M2019F5831H AR A A 2k FEEBER
BaF kAl ok T AAGERSRENRHER
HAOBI2AESE (20185 6 8AEST) o

BABERE
ARAEHMERERF SRS AP RS
18 5 il B MR Y S0 BB R 2 )RR L
MR A R RS

BE HEIEEH LHES

BE201945 A31H ILEE AR AR
BB 2 B 4 SR B A A AT
ey

B2 R 55 ME BB & AV B &

AEERR RBE TP RMHERSANEER
BRYWERNEAEE AEEEBAE
BE MEFREHEEEEMLRY RHERER
BERREHEL KA ENER&RS - A
EXFHEER BNERCEAFENL-



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 22.8% of the Group’s revenue and the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 7.1% of the
Group's revenue.

During the Year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 47.8% of the Group’'s purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 16.1% of the
Group'’s purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong (resigned on 13 June 2018)

Mr. Yau Ka Hei

Mr. Chu Kin Ming

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick (resigned on 3 December 2018)
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert (@ppointed on 3 December 2018)

By virtue of Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert
shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

The Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong has entered
into a service or an appointment contract with the Company for
a fixed term of three years, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ written notice served by either party on the
other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in
Articles.

IREFRHES
FR AREF ARG REBIRAL22.8%:
7 S B B A 5 Rl A SR B A 497.1% <

FRN EAEEBEAEAEERBRY
47.8% - 1 A 5= B & K (e 7 AU MG AN SR IR B
BH16.1% °

MEESE RECMNETHEAXTARR
(BESMET BABBARRSEITHEA
5% ) RZETBEEFPRHEREAEIMNE

REARBERAFHRAP/LE BEFR:

Loh Swee Keongst & (FEHF T A Z)
Tan Cheng Siong5t 4 ( R2018%6 134 & 1F)

BREKE

KEERAE A

ASERIR S A (20184 12 H3H BEIE)
EREELE (R2018FE12H3HEE(F)

RIBEAR R F A EIZ AR5 1081% - Loh Swee
Keongst 4 M B HE LA BN ERERREFK
LRI MEFNEEBMBENRZAE L
HEREE-

EENREBEEN

#$1TEE (BlLoh Swee Keongst 4 ) B AR
R VRBANRZEE BeFHAS=
F-AlEAA—FRS—AFEETPR=EA
MEERAK L WESZE P AT EBRC R
MBIFTE E E R ERETIEATRR -

BREEER AT / 2019F | 27



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEgRE

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company for a fixed term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice served
by either party on the other, and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service
contract or an appointment letter which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographies details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 19 to 23.

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individual's remuneration are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year and at any time
during the year ended 31 May 2019.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance has been entered during the year
ended 31 May 2019 between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any its
subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 May 2019.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
May 2019.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and
the company through which he holds equity interests in the
Company, namely Merchant World Investments Limited, have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition with the Company on
27 June 2017. The details of the Deed of Non-Competition have
been disclosed in the Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed with the Company
that they had complied with the non-competition undertakings
during the year ended 31 May 2019. The Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed and
confirmed the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
by the controlling shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float or not less than
25% of the Shares are in the hands of the public as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST COMPETING BUSINESS
As at 31 May 2019, none of the Directors, nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company and any of their respective close
associates has any interest in a business which competes or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Ever-Long Securities Company Limited (“Ever-
Long”), compliance adviser of the Company, except for the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and Ever-Long dated 17 April 2019, neither Ever-Long
nor any of its close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) and none of the directors or employees of Ever-Long had
any interest in the share capital of our Company or any member
of our Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such
securities, if any) which is required to be notified to our
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as of
31 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 May 2019, the interests and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO (i) as required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest and/or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Sections 352 of the SFO, or (iii) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of the Company

Capacity/
Nature of Interest

S/ BEHE

Mr. Loh Swee Keong (Note 2)
Loh Swee Keong %4 (#1:22) XEEEEE R
Notes.

(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares.

(2)  Merchant World Investments Limited is a company incorporated in
the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Loh Swee Keong. Mr. Loh Swee
Keong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Merchant World Investments Limited for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) as required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO), or (ii) as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or (iii) as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by Directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46
of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 May 2019, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 and SFO were as follows:
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Oordinary Shares of the Company

Number of  Approximate
Capacity/Nature Shares percentage of
of Interest (Note 1) share holding
[igng - | A AR
5/ EmttE (Hiaz1) Bal
Merchant World Investments Limited Beneficial owner 238,620,000 (L) 38.49%
EREEA
Ms. Woon Sow Sum (Note 2) Interest of spouse 238,620,000 (L) 38.49%
Woon Sow Sum %+ (#7i2) Fic 18 7 =
Greater Elite Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
ERBEEA
Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
ERREE (B723) REHEE S
Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina (Note 4) Interest of spouse 122,980,000 (L) 19.84%
BEELL (f7t4) B 2
Mr. Fung Tak, Andrew Beneficial owner 44,512,000 (L) 7.17%
HELE EnEEA
Ms. Lo Pui Chu, Amy (Note 5) Interest of spouse 44,512,000 (L) 7.17%
Bkt (#725) B 2
Mr. Fung Hong, Albert Beneficial owner 35,264,000 (L) 5.68%
MR EE EnEEA
Ms. Cho Ka Lai (Note 6) Interest of spouse 35,264,000 (L) 5.68%
ERBXT (Kits) B 2
Notes: it -
(1) The letter (L) denotes the person’s long interest in the Shares. (1) BEXFEHORTZALIREOHEE -

Woon Sow Sum#Z == ALoh Swee Keong4t 4
MRS REZHFRAEGIWRABIEIE
Loh Swee Keong%t & Bz &9 FT A B (D
PEEER -

(2)  Ms. Woon Sow Sum is the spouse of Mr. Loh Swee Keong and is (2
deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in which Mr. Loh
Swee Keong has interest under the SFO.

(3)  Greater Elite Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI 3)
and is wholly-owned by Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul. Mr. Law Fung
Yuen Paul is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Greater Elite Holdings Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Greater Elite Holdings Limiteda— R R HE
BERBEEFMRINAR THEBRRLE
2EER - REBFHFLRAEKD BRREE
45 B R Greater Elite Holdings Limited#%
BRIZBBOPHEEER -
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(4)  Ms. Cheng Lai Wah Christina is the spouse of Mr. Law Fung Yuen
Paul and is deemed, or taken to be interested in all Shares in
which Mr. Law Fung Yuen Paul has interest under the SFO.

(5)  Ms. Lo Pui Chu, Amy is the spouse of Mr. Fung Tak, Andrew and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Fung Tak, Andrew has interest under the SFO.

(6)  Ms. Cho Ka Lai is the spouse of Mr. Fung Hong, Albert and is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Fung Hong, Albert has interest under the SFO.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 May 2019, the Company has
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full time and part time), or any member of the
Group, including any Executive, Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors, advisors, consultants of
the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
27 June 2017 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
to grant options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the
shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the date of the grant
of option.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares as at 31 May 2019 in issue
upon the date of the shares of the Company listed on the GEM,
being 62,000,000 shares (or such numbers of shares as shall
result from a subdivision or a consolidation of such 62,000,000
from time to time) (the “Scheme Limit"). Subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit at
any time to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the
approval by the shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant
options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options shall be granted under any
schemes of the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if
this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each Participants in any
twelve months period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.
Any further grant of options is subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with such Eligible Participants and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an options is HKD1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’'s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal
value of the share.

As at 31 May 2019, no share option was granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme of the
company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
May 2019 was the Company, its or any of its holding companies
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and the Chief Executives (including their spouses
and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or
short positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 May 2019, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company (as defined under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules)
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the
significant related party transactions undertaken in the usual
course of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction, which needs to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group as at 31 May
2019 are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association
(“Articles of Association”) of the Company, the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them may incur or sustain in the execution of
their duties in their offices. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme are set out above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked arrangement
during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company recognised its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Company is
committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure our
business meet the required standards and ethics in respect of
environmental protection.
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DONATION
During the Year, the Group had made charitable and other
donation for approximately RM20,774 (2018: RM22,043).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during
their tenure during the Year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM to be held on Monday, 25 November 2019, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 20
November 2019 to Monday, 25 November 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM or any adjournment thereof, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investors Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 19 November
2019.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2019 have
been audited by Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-
LCA) as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

SK Target Group Limited
Loh Swee Keong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the senior management of the Group is
committed to achieve a high standard of corporate governance,
to formulate good corporate governance practices for improving
the accountability and transparency in operations, and to
strengthen the internal control and risk management systems
from time to time so as to protect the rights of the shareholders
and enhance shareholder value. The Directors consider that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is crucial
for effective management, successful business growth and a
healthy corporate culture which in return benefits the Group's
stakeholders as a whole.

The Board has adopted and save as disclosed in the following
paragraph complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.
The Directors will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices in order to enhance its corporate
governance standard, to comply with the increasingly tightened
regulatory requirements from time to time, and to meet the
rising expectation of shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Group.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established.

Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating
and managing the operating subsidiaries of the Group since
1993, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Loh taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. Therefore, the
Directors consider that the deviation from the CG Code provision
A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

Save as disclosed above, during the year in the opinion of the
Directors, the Group has complied with the code provision of the
CG Code.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also
made specific enquiry of all the Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
of dealings regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31 May 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Directors, including one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and three
Independent Non-executive Directors who are Mr. Yau Ka Hei,
Mr. Chu Kin Ming and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert.

Mr. Loh Swee Keong is the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the
Board.

OVERALL ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability. The
Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith and
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders and
fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements. The Board has the full support from the
Directors and the senior management of the Company to
discharge its responsibilities.

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior
management are set out in the section headed with “Directors
and Senior Management Profiles” of this report.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group's policies and
business plans, and monitoring internal controls and
performances. The overall management of the Company’s
business is vested in the Board which assumes the responsibility
for promoting the success of the Company by supervising its
affairs. The Board focuses on formulating the Group’s overall
strategies, approving the annual development plan and budget;
monitoring financial and operating performance; reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system and supervising the
management’s performance. Regarding the Group’s corporate
governance, the Board is responsible for performing following
duties:

(@) determine and review the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; and

(c) review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings concerning
securities transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Directors are reminded of their
obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following
specific enquiries by the Group, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 May 2019.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Loh is the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Loh has been operating and managing
the operating subsidiaries of the Group since 1993, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Loh taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in
such circumstance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) and setting out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The ultimate
decision will be based on the merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
The Board delegates to the Management in respect of the major
corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparation of annual, interim and quarterly results of the
Group to be approved by the Board.

2. execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the
Group adopted by the Board;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures of the Group; and

4. carrying out daily business operations and decision-
makings of the Group, etc.

BOARD MEETING, GENERAL MEETING AND
PROCEDURES

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances.

During the year, 9 Board meetings have been held for the
discussion and approval of important matters such as the
approval of quarterly results, interim results, annual results and
dividends, etc. The attendance record of each Director during
the year at Board meetings is as follows:
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Number of
Attendance
Attended/
Eligible to
Attend
HE S EER
Name of Director R
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Loh Swee Keong Loh Swee Keong4t & 9/9
Mr. Tan Cheng Siong (resigned on 13 June 2018)  Tan Cheng Siongst 4 (201846 5 13H EF1F) 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei B R1E % A 9/9
Mr. Chu Kin Ming REF LA 9/9
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick B LA 5/5
(resigned on 3 December 2018) (R2018%F 12 H3H B T)
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert BEHEELAE 4/4
(appointed on 3 December 2018) (R2018F 12 H3H#EZ ()

The Directors do not have any relationship (Including financial,
business, family or other material relationships) between
themselves.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Group has not established a corporate governance
committee and thus the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out in CG Code D.3.1 such as
reviewing and determining the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group, developing the Group's
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.
To enable all the Directors to participate in the meetings, the
Company ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at the Board meetings and receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner. Notice of
regular Board meetings is given to all Directors and they can
include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit.
Draft minutes of Board meeting shall be circulated to all
Directors for comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The
signed minutes are kept by the Company Secretary. Every Board
member has full access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board documents
and related materials so that they are able to make an informed
decision.

Pursuant to article 108 (a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall
be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Loh Swee Keong and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert
shall retire at the 2019 AGM and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The biographical details of above mentioned Directors proposed
to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” on pages 19 to 23 of this annual report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles. Each Independent Non-executive
Directors is required to inform the Group as soon as practicable
if there is any change that may affect his/her independence. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independency
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers these Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, the Directors are encouraged to
participate in professional development courses and seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.
During the year ended 31 May 2019, the Directors have read
relevant materials on topics relating to corporate governance
and regulatory updates on discloseable transactions and
connected transactions etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees, namely the
audit committee (the “"Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The
terms of reference of the Board’'s committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange and
are available to shareholders upon request.
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The Group established the Audit Committee on 27 June 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Yau Ka Hei, Mr. Chu Kin Ming
and Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert. The chairman of the Audit
Ccommittee is Mr. Chu Kin Ming.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

(@) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor, and be
primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review with the Group’s management, external auditors
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group's policies
and system regarding internal controls (including financial,
operational and compliance controls), risk management
system and any statement by the Directors of the Company
to be included in the annual accounts prior to
endorsement by the Board,

(c) to review and monitor the integrity of the Company'’s
financial statements and the annual, quarterly and interim
financial reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them prior to approval
by the Board, with particular focus on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustment resulting from the audit/review;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with the accounting and auditing
standards; and
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(vi)

=AW E

compliance with the listing requirements on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
legal requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(d) Oversee the issuer’s financial reporting system, the risk
management and the internal control systems;

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

to review the Company's financial controls, and
unless expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the board itself, to review the
Company'’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to review arrangements employees of the Group can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

to review the draft representation letter prior to
approval by the Board;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an
effective system. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
issuer's accounting and financial reporting function;
and

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings.

For the year ended 31 May 2019, 4 meetings have been held for
the Audit Committee and all the members of the Committee
attended the meetings. The audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2019 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27
June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists of
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei
and Mr. Chu Kin Ming. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Hei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for the
followings:

(@) to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief
executive of the Company (where applicable) about their
remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors. The
Committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary,

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’'s corporate goals
and objectives;

(c) either (i) determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; or (ii) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;

(e) consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
and
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(f)  review and approve compensation payable to the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive.

For the year ended 31 May 2019, three meetings have been held
for the Remuneration Committee and all the members of the
Committee attended the meetings.

Nil to HKD1,000,000

The emolument payable to Directors depends on their respective
contractual terms under the service contracts and the
appointment letters, and as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Rule
18.30 of the GEM Listing Rules have been set out in notes 6 and
7 10 the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee currently consists of one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Loh Swee Keong and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Hei and
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert. The chairman of the Nomination
committee is Mr. Loh Swee Keong.
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The main roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include the followings:

(@) review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy,

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(c) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company;,

(d) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors of the Company and
succession planning for Directors of the Company, in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company; and

(e) have a policy concerning diversity of Board members,
review the policy and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the policy and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the
corporate governance report annually.

For the year ended 31 May 2019, three meetings have been held
for the Nomination Committee and all the members of the
committee attended the meetings.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify
candidates to become a member of the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
nominated for directorships. The Board shall be composed of
members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business
development, strategies, operation, challenges and
opportunities. The core criteria for selection include gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience, number
of directorship in other listed/public companies and in case of
Independent Non-executive Directors, the number of years they
have already served. According to the nomination procedure, the
Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new Directors and recommends to the Board for decision. The
appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Articles of Association, the GEM Listing
Rules and the Nomination Policy.

2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, the
Independent Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the visions
of shareholders. At the 2018 annual general meeting held on 8
October 2018, all the Independent Non-executive Directors
attended the meeting.
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For the year ended 31 May 2019, the attendance record of each #HE2019F5A31H I FE  FEENEED
Director is set out in the table below: BRE N T3

Number of attendance/number of meetings
Name of Directors for the year ended 31 May 2019
EEps BLMAMEERGEANLNEERB/ERRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee = Committee = Committee General

meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
=g ENZEE FMZES REZES

= 23 g3 23 REKXE

Executive Directors

HITEZ

Mr. Loh Swee Keong 9/9 N/A 3/3 3/3 11
Loh Swee Keong %t & TEA

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong (resigned on 13 June 2018) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Tan Cheng Siong %4 (K2018%6 A 134 B ) TER TEHA TEA TER TER

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUEHTES
Mr. Yau Ka Hei 9/9 4/4 3/3 3/3 il
BRELE
Mr. Chu Kin Ming 9/9 4/4 3/3 N/A 11
RERELAE TEA
Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick
(resigned on 3 December 2018) 5/5 2/2 N/A 3/3 11
FRBLE
(R2018%12A3A & (T) TEA
Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert
(appointed on 3 December 2018) 4/4 2/2 N/A 0/0 0/0
(R2018%F12H3A EZ F) TER
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in preparing the
Group's consolidated financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs,
results and cash flows and in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards and principles and the disclosure
requirements under applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong.

The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and to
report their opinion to the shareholders of the Company. The
statements by the external auditor, Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-
LCA), about their reporting responsibility on the financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 59 to 65 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control and risk management systems and for monitoring their
effectiveness to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
assets of the Group. The internal control system of the Group
aims to facilitate efficient operation which in turn reduces the
risks to which the Group is exposed. The internal control and risk
management systems are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group's business objectives.
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The Group recognises that effective risk management is
essential for the long-term development on the Group’s
business. The management is responsible for establishing,
implementing and reviewing the sound and effective internal
control system underpinning the risk management framework.
The Audit Committee will periodically review the Group's
compliance status with the Hong Kong laws and will perform its
functions by (i) reviewing the internal control and legal
compliance; (i) discussing the internal control systems with the
management of the Group to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system
and (iii) considering the major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or its own initiative
and the management'’s response to these findings. While taking
into full account of the new requirements effective from the
Listing Date under the GEM Listing Rules brought by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited relating to risk management and
internal control, the management has formulated the risk
management and control framework. All employees are
committed to implement the risk management framework into
the daily operation.

In addition, the Group engaged an independent internal control
consultant (“Internal Control Consultant “) to conduct an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems in various material
aspects including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Based upon the recommendations from the Internal Control
Consultant, the Group has taken remedial actions. Further, in
order to continuously improve the Group's corporate
governance in the future the Group will adopt the measures
recommended by the Internal Control Consultant.

Based on the result of the reviews as mentioned above, it is
considered that proper internal control and risk management
systems are in place and implemented effectively.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 May 2019, the remuneration paid or
payable to Deloitte PLT in respect of the statutory audit services
and non-audit services for the Group are as follows:

Nature of Services

R % 1 E

B ZRT
FEEZIRS

Audit services
Non-audit services

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to
provide guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends
are to be declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of
dividend to be paid.

Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, among others,

o financial results;

o cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

. future operations and earnings,

. capital requirements and expenditure plans;

J interests of shareholders;

. any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the GEM Listing Rules, the laws of Hong
Kong and the Company's Memorandum and Articles of
Association and any other applicable laws and regulations. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend distribution
ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record in the past
may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level
of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Tze Wai was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company on 1 November 2018. All Directors have access to
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Mr. Leung
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for
the year ended 31 May 2019. The biographical details of Mr.
Leung are set out under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 19 to 23 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
rights, separate resolutions can be proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.
All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be
voted by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll
voting results will be posted on the website of The Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website after the relevant
shareholders’ meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The following procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the
Articles (as amended from time to time), and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules (as
amended from time to time):

(@) EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition (the “Requisition”), not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings (the “Eligible Shareholders”).
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two Months after the
deposit of such requisition;

(b) The Eligible Shareholders must deposit the Requisition to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 101, 1/F, Chung Nam Building, 1 Lockhart
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or to Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board and/or
the Company Secretary;

(c) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company'’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with
any enquiries.
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There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in
the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors and management of the Company. Such questions,
requests, comments and suggestions can be addressed to the
Company by post to Room 101, 1/F, Chung Nam Building, 1
Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852)
3702 5315.

Should there are any enquiries and concerns from shareholders,
they may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investors Limited, by post to Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or via telephone at (852) 2980
1333. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the prompt
response from the Company if it deems appropriate.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy between itself and its shareholders, and investors which
aims to set out the principles of the Company in relation to the
shareholders’ communications, with the objective of ensuring
timely, transparent and accurate communications between the
shareholders of the Company and the Company. These include
answering questions through the annual general meeting, the
publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices,
announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.targetprecast.com and meetings with investors and
shareholders. News update of the Group’s business
development and operation are also available on the Company’s
website.

ARAAANHFSEHSE R BDERBEGERE
BRANRBERAE LBHEMARR - FEDE
RE RO R RAKBEABRATREF ZRKAR
AAFRBRAE -

BRARARREELEEERLMBE T
AHARBEMTREE R REH ZEHE-
R BERAREZRVERABTEE B ETRR
B APEAEIEI101E 5% B F 5%(852)
3702 5315[FEE AR QA °

BERMETREARER JEBRABTEES
ERERNERISHFA AP LSAERBEBEE
(852) 2980 1333AARRIMEERMNBFERT
REERFECBRAFIREEELE T
BRH R RE - BE R IZ I R RE RS TS B8 TR/l
AR AE AR R E IR D E -

REEBZ

RABEHEREBANBERERERINEEE
@ B AR R A BB AR A -
AREIRAN A R R B AN R R B - B R
BRRA - ZERABERARRBAFAERE
MR FEFE PHREFEERE BE A%
K38 BK ~ AN B4R 5 (www targetprecast.com) A
REREERBRERNSZ AEEEBHEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRER/RE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no changes in the Company’s Constitutional
documents. A copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional
Documents is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. Directors, senior management and employees of the
Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company are subject to dealing restrictions in securities of
the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially
constitute inside information is promptly identified, assessed
and escalated to the Board and for the Board to decide on the
need for disclosure. Inside information and other information
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BA R E

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SK
TARGET GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
companies (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 May 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 May 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HmBEEERAT
(RAEESHEEME L ER A])
EERRNBILHEIRE

REVMBBERNEFLRSE

HPEEZFOEIIEMERmBEEFRA
A(ERARRANEBEAR (REBEE
B )WREMBERE REREMBEREE
ER2019F5 A3 A AR A MR R EH =
AERIENGEERsREMEEEER &K
ERGEHREGAESRER UNKES

MBRRM T (BREASHREHRE) -
BMRR UHEBREREERM B RS E

AlEEmRERE BEEER2019F5H31
HHGE M BARAARBEZB IEFERLR
AU BREARGEAASREVCRERTER
AIGPINEBEREL ARE -

With effect from 3 January 2017, Deloitte, a conventional partnership firm with the Registration No. AF0080, was converted to Deloitte PLT (LLPO010145-LCA) (AF0080).

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related entities. DTTL and each of its
member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/my/about to learn more about

our global network of member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BAHRE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE AND OTHER ETHICAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matters that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current year. The
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B X BERE

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continuead)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

FAEEREER (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B RWRERERR

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance
of trade receivables to the Group’s consolidated
financial position and the involvement of subjective
judgement and management estimates in evaluating the
expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group's trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.
HREBEZEWRIEY BEBGAUBRAZEELR
Rt ESEEZEZEBRERRESRNBEHEES
B(EHEEEE] RIELO BB REEBHE
BPBEZEUGRIBRERBEER ABREZEE-

As at 31 May 2019, the Group's net trade receivables is
RM9.93 million, which represented approximately 24%
of total assets of the Group and out of those trade
receivables of approximately RM5.6 million were past
due.

2019658318 EBEB B SEKKIEFERE.93
BELST N BSEEBEEMN24% BEP 568
ELEMBEZRENFIBEE B -

As disclosed in Note 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based
on estimated loss rate, which is determined based on
the management’'s assessment on the individual
customer’s credit risk grading dependent on the
individual customer’s financial performance, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, and any
forward-looking information without undue cost or
effort, including time value of money where appropriate.
MIRE BB MERMF260MEE - EEEEEERE
HEEEXGFEZRERRENEHEREESES
B oMbstEEXRDBEEEERSENTEEFNEERR
FHEMETE T ARBUARNBAZRP MG EE BREE
BABTNARARER N L IBEKARLLE RN S
MAEMAEEER (REEEKBEBE (NEE) )H
#o

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group's lifetime ECL on trade
receivables as at 31 May 2019 amounted to
approximately RM129,000.

WMERE SRR 7 HEE - EEER2019F5A31
HHE 5 RN IEN 2 BT (= BB A129,0002

==
5 °

BMWEENMEE@ARERER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:
BMBEHESRBGNERHEEFENREFBE:

. Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables;

e THMEEEMGMIEZIERNEEERECHRE
B

. Challenging management'’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowances on trade
receivables as at 1 June 2018 and 31 May 2019,
including their identification of credit impaired
trade receivables, and the basis of estimated loss
rate such as customers’ credit risk grading
dependent on the customers’ financial
performance, historical loss rates and forward-
looking information;

o HREIEEETN2018F6A1H K2019F5H31H
WE SRV ABEEBEREZERRHE 215
BEHEEREZ ZHEWRIE ZH A RE B
EEE(MEFEPUBRE BELEOELA
EHEERFTENRPEERBRITIR) 2EERY
s

. Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
notes 17 and 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements; and

o AR AFBmMERMTI7R260)TEBRE ZENK
RIEBETEHEE &

e Testing subsequent settlements of credit-impaired
trade receivables, on a sample basis, by
inspecting supporting documents in relation to
cash receipt from trade receivables subsequent
to the end of the current reporting period.

e RBAREEINMEHEEUBEIERNENES
KFBERAEAREEEREEZERFENE
BELT-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BAHRE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITORS' REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements of the Group or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The directors of the
Company are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BA R E

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements of the Group as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the content of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements of the Group represents the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BA R E

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting the independent
auditors’ report is Khong Siew Chin.

Q:Lflf-‘l‘t rFe

DELOITTE PLT (LLPO01P145-LCA)
Chartered Accountantsf(AF 0080)

28 August 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERAMZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2019
BZE2019F5A318IEFE

Revenue LN 5 29,451 38,194
Cost of sales THE AR (21,859) (29,433)
Gross profit EF 7,592 8,761

Other income E b g A 379 356
Administrative expenses THRAX (8,737) (7,469)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (1,125) (1,195)
Listing expenses WX - (2,336)
Finance costs RN 8 (14) (26)
Loss before taxation R T AT S 18 9 (1,905) (1,909)
Taxation g 10 (744) (1,181)

Loss for the year FANEE (2,649) (3,090)

Other comprehensive loss item that HigneEH D EEE
may be reclassified subsequently to ERMEMEEEEIE
profit or loss: H:

Exchange differences arising on MEGINETBEFWE

translation of foreign operations RBER (974)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHEEIBEE (4,064)
Loss per share: SHEE
Basic (RM cent) EARN(LSH 71 (0.58)

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the PBEMIM BRI ZHSEEMBERIGG—Z D -
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB AARR K

AS AT 31 MAY 2019
H2019F5/31H

2019 AONES]
20194 20184F
Notes RM'000 RM'000
Kt <H °F
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE BB REE 13 4,380
Investment property wEYHE 14 391
Deferred tax assets EIETIEE E 15 32
Total Non-Current Assets kRBEELE 4,803
current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 1,350
Receivables, deposits and prepayments JEUEIE « e RIBERZFK 17 19,897
Amount owing from ultimate holding ~ FEUR & &R ¥ I A R FUA
company 18 9
Amount owing from a shareholder JRE UK AR R 5K T8 18 3
Tax recoverable CIRqEE R 369
Short-term bank deposits RHRITHER 79 401
Cash on hand and at bank FELFETRS 79 21,075
Total Current Assets REBEERE 43,104
current Liabilities REAE
Payables and accrued charges ERNRERETER 20 9,937
Amount owing to a director JET & = KA 18 12
Tax payable FET IR 43
Total Current Liabilities FBEEAE 6,361 9,992
Net Current Assets ERBEE 30,406 33,112
Total Assets Less Current HEERRBAERE
Liabilities 37,915

HREBEAER AT / 2019F )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRR R

AS AT 31 MAY 2019
H2019F5831H

2019
20194

RM'000

P -
<A

Non-Current Liability kRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 15 281 223
Total Non-Current Liability kRBEEEE 281 223
Net Assets FEE 35,434 37,692
Capital and Reserves BARREE

Share capital & 7 21 3,382 3,382
Share premium f& 15 % (B 22 19,891 19,891
Other reserve HAb R 23 8,579 8,579
Translation reserve R 24 (583) (974)
Retained profits REB & 4,165 6,814
Total Equity ESAE 35,434 37,692

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 151 were  EHRFSEIS1ENGEAMBHREAHEETEN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 201948 A28 B #L W HAE T3 - W iy T 5| &

28 August 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREE:
Loh Swee Keong Chu Kin Ming
K2
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
E0 BB TEE

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the BEW M FERHESGEAMBERESN —I5 -
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

Share

Other Translation

Share capital

JLES

RM 000

AN
X A

premium
R 5RE
RM 000

reserve  reserve
Hitke EARER
RM 000 RM 000

A A A=+
~ A ~ A <A

Retained
profits
RE &
RM 000

A
<A

At 1 June 2017 H2017%56A1H - - 8,579 - 9,904 18,483
Loss for the year FNER - - - - (3,090) (3,090)
Exchange differences BEBNEBEENER

arising on translation of ~ Z%8

foreign operations - - - (974) - (974)
Total comprehensive loss  FR2HEEEAE

for the year - - - (974) (3,090) (4,064)
Issuance of new shares  EBLATH A EATHR :

through:
Capitalisation (Note 216) Bt (Bi5#210) 2,400 (2,400) - - - -
Placement of and public  EERAREE

offering (Note 21b) (Krit21b) 982 26,511 - - - 27,493
Transaction costs BIIHREERHEA

attributable to issue of

new shares - (4,220) - - - (4,220)
At 31 May 2018 #2018F5A31H 3,382 19,891 8,579 (974) 6,814 37,692

HREBEAER AT / 2019F )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSEX

Share Other Translation  Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve profits
BA  BROBE HttREe EXRE  RKREEF

RM 000 RM 000 RM 000 RM 000 RM 000

TLHE T&E T<H XaE &

At 1 June 2018 R2018F6A1H 3,382 19,891 8,579 (974) 6,814 37,692
Loss for the year FAER - - - - (2,649) (2,649)
Exchange differences BHEBMNEBEENER
arising on translation of =%
foreign operations 391 391
Total comprehensive loss  FR2HEEEAE
for the year 391 (2,649) (2,258)

At 31 May 2019 R20194%5A318 3,382 19,891 (583) 4,165 35,434

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the FEMMIEBALSMREMBREN —H5 -
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REBRERER

2018
20184
RM’000
*F
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KSR
Loss before taxation T Al S 1B (1,909)
Adjustments for: BATEBEIELFAE:
Depreciation of: AT EEFE :
Property, plant and equipment Y BB L& E 535
Investment property "EYZE 10
Bad debts written off = IR 3E 245
Finance costs A& B AR 26
Property, plant and equipment written Y2 - 5 KRR 1 E
off -
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE BB KR EHE
equipment B "
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign REBINE (W), BB
exchange 982
Allowance for credit losses EEEIERE 200
Allowance for credit losses no longer BEBEEEBERE
required 3)
Impairment of goodwill R E 10
Interest income FLE WA (35)
Operating (loss)/profit before working BEESEIANLE
capital changes (B8 ,/#7 72
Movements in working capital: BBEEGEE:
(Increase)/Decrease in: TEEE (M), R
Inventories "E (699)
Receivables, deposits and prepayments FEUGRTE e RIBI R (4,466)
(Decrease)/Increase in: THEE CRL) /18
Payables and accrued charges ERREREFTER 1,476
Net Cash From/(Used) In Operations BEHE (AR FE (3,617)
Income tax paid EATETEH (1,696)
Net Cash From/(Used) In Operating KETZEME (FTA)RS
Activities FRE (5,313)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME - BB REETER

plant and equipment 15 104
Interest received 2 A& 35
(Advance to)/Repayment from B (8 3R) i8R

a shareholder 4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE ¥ BE k&R (1,811)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged short-term 25 AR 1T1F K

bank deposits (3gm),/wmd 658
Net Cash Used In Investing KEREFTAREFE

Activities (1,010)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEED
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRM B FIE 23,273
Repayment to a director MEFEX (570)
Advance from a director MESFBN 12
Finance costs paid EATRE KA (26)
Repayment of finance leases EERMENE (583)
Net Cash (Used in)/From Financing BMEES (FTH) FBEE:

Activities FEE 22,106
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH HRE&RBELZEY (HL)/

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EIFEEE 15,783
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERREEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,248
Effects of exchange differences EH RN (1,956)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HXRReRESEEY

END OF YEAR (Note 19) (Brat19) 21,075
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 19 July
2017. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as a private limited liability company on 28 October
2016. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business are PO. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and 18,
Jalan LP 2A/2, Taman Lestari Perdana, 43300 Seri
Kembangan, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia, respectively.

Merchant World Investments Limited (“Merchant World"),
a limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Company. Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company who wholly owns
Merchant World.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes, trading of
accessories and pipes and provision of mobile crane rental
and ancillary services in Malaysia, Japanese catering
services and sourcing service of materials in Hong Kong.
The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiary companies are set out in Note 30.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to nearest
thousands (RM'000), unless otherwise stated.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

In the current financial year, the Group adopted all the new
and revised IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) that are
effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after
1 June 2018 as follows:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

Clarifications to IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued
by IASB in July 2014)

Revenue from Contract with
Customers

Revenue from Contract with
Customers

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and

BRARNFTET R
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Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs and
amendments to IFRSs did not result in significant changes
in the accounting policies of the Group and had no
significant effect on the financial performance or position

of the Group, except for the below:
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial
assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 June
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 June 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 May 2018 and 1 June 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has no material financial impact
other than disclosures made in the financial statements.
There is no cumulative effect affecting retained profits as
at 1 June 2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

R REBTREBRTHRE
ZA| ([ BEREER])

/43

(A5 /

RAFE NEBEERABRMBEHRS
ERFEOR R TR - FRM RS LR
FORIANEREEREHBENDE
RtB: QemEENTEHEERIE
([FEHEEER]) R —REPEE
BROHME °

NE& B B R B RR B 5 RS 4R B 895 T
BB 8 U {6 SO FE FR B PR B A iR S 2E RIS
9%k - BN 720186 A18 (WX FER B
T EKIIERNTREBEERS
L E2fE (RREHEEBERRXT
KR E) - Mk M ¥ B 20186 A1H
IRIFFERO T AERAB BET 72018
F5A31H HR2018F6A1HREE 2
MR ZEN YR B &7 R e H A
BoPHER WEEI|LEER-

B - B T AR R B R R R
BHEAEDFREMT A R RIE
R LA R -

B TR R N 1t RS SR A B
BT R R BOHL ME A TR
i 8 5201866 11 B B R B Y
Bt

ERBERMBEREENFIREUNE
AR 2 B RO 3T EE o

HiaEEARADT / 2019F 1 /5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

Below illustrates the classification and measurement of
financial assets and liabilities and other items subject to
ECL under IFRS 9 at the date of initial application, 1 June

2018.

(@)

76

Loans and receivables

The Group's receivables and deposits, amount owing
from ultimate holding company, amount owing from a
shareholder, short-term bank deposits, and cash on
hand and at bank previously classified as loans and
receivables under IAS 39 that were reclassified to
financial assets at amortised cost upon the
application of IFRS 9 because they were held within a
business model to collect contractual cash flows and
these cash flows consist solely of payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

There were no measurement impact to the carrying
amount upon the adoption of IFRS 9 at the date of
initial application on 1 June 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. All trade receivables have been assessed
individually.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including other receivables and deposits, amount
owing from ultimate holding company, amount owing
from a shareholder, short-term bank deposits and
cash at bank, are assessed on 12-month ECL basis as
there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

The initial application of IFRS 9 has had no material
cumulative effect affecting retained profits and basic
and diluted earnings per share as at 1 June 2018.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9
(Continued)

(c) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
The adoption of IFRS 9 has had no impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial liabilities.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 June 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively
only to contracts that are not completed at 1 June 2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15
are disclosed in note 3.

The adoption of IFRS 15 has no impact on the financial
positions and financial performance of the Group for the
current and prior year.

The initial application of IFRS 15 has had no impact on the
basic and diluted earnings per share as of 1 June 2018.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continueq)

At the date of authorisation for issue of these financial
statements, the new and revised IFRSs and amendments to
IFRSs which were in issue but not yet effective and not
early adopted by the Group are as listed below:

IFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendments, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material?

and IAS 8

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle!
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021, with earlier application permitted.
4 Effective date deferred to a date to be determined and

announced by IASB.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the new IFRSs, revised IFRSs and IFRIC will
have no material impact on the financial performance and
the financial position of the Group in the period of initial
application except for the below:
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows.

Under the IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

R REBTREBRTHRE
ZA| ([ BEREER])

/435 )
\ 8/

B

b

BIFR B 75 3R 5 RS 1657 AR A A
KABANHEHER N EFTRESIA—
ExR AR - B 53| EEAE 165
KA A RS ER B &5t BRI $17
SHEREHRE-

BRI R S AR RIFFIR A E

ERmEFPEFKESHERREA
WeBRHHEREEEEREN K2
HERBEHENEZEEAATEAGTE
BB WHAMEARSAEHER
REMEEERBERBENRAZR -
ERREENTRERATE  BRIZX
A CETOIIMERERIN) MR T E KR
EEEHE SHEABTAENIE
HE-HERBNIREBAINEE
NRBREE R HERERL (EP
BRE)MERBEENRIAREEENRF
EF7NHAB-pREEROVBEMS  AKH
ER2IKEHENTAKERER

E°

RIEEREP B REERF165% ARAHE
EREHENFTBOEEARAS LFEH
WK E2IBRMERTIR -

MHeEABEASFEME  BRMHHRE
EHF16F AR L AR 2 R E
17RO HEAGTHERE LEEER
HEARBRESBREEHENRER
.

BEAN - BB B 75 3R 5 R 165K BRE
e -

BREEER AT / 2019F | 79



ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("“IFRSs") (continued)

As at 31 May 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RM2,541,000 as disclosed in note 29.
A preliminary assessment indicated that these arrangements
will meet the definition of lease. Upon application of IFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RM414,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not
payment, relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 determining whether
an Arrangement contains a lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
IFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting policies which conform with
IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements have included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within
the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in 1AS 36 Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEe
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
companies. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary company begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary company and
ceases when the Group loses control over the subsidiary
company. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
company acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary
company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of a subsidiary company to bring its accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless the date of the common
control combination.

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’'s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B %5 R R B &E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for the sales
related tax (e.g. goods and services tax).

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii) Rendering of services
Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

(iiif) Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of
incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a
reduction of rental income over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

86

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and non-monetary benefits
are recognised as expense in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Short-term non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the
absences occur.

Retirement benefits costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.
The Group has no further payment obligations once
these contributions have been paid.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or 10ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii) Translation reserve

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are expressed in Ringgit Malaysia
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during
that year, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings,
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised
S0 as to write off the cost of investment properties over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, that amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquire and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment.

90 SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

BEARHBE (#)

KREMERFHEARRRDES K3
BARIBENYE -

BEMENTRKATE BREMNE
BRIEFX - R HRE  REWETS
WA R IR REHTE RMER RFHRE
BERIE TEEBRRBALRKEYNED
EE AT A F A BRI A

REMERHERINREMEKAS
BERAEEMBEETSELRRLEN
SR BURER - BUB R X ELNE
B R (REEMGRAEFHRE
BEREECREBRTE) G ABDUH
R XY MR-

BEEMEENE  RERES 2 &M
FEIRR M BB MR BE 07 e AT AT R 1R MK
BhHBRAERZ ATE (E) ZHEME
H R R R A U B B E R AR R B B
BEHZFR B E - HWRENDG
Bf& AR EEMAERE
KRB FRBHAEERE RN
WU RE T7 2 (] SR 4R A i 2 2 BR B
SRR AR A T a2 A A (40
B)ZEM BHeRARRNERP R
REEBYE NS - BRRERE  BERK
RBAER REHRERE -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is
allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the
operation within that CGU is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed
of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of
the CGU retained.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment l0ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 June 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continuea)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross earning
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9
including receivables and deposits, amount owing from
ultimate holding company, amount owing from a
shareholder, short-term bank deposits and cash at bank.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B %5 R R B &E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accoraance with note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the management’s assessment on the individual
customer’s credit risk grading dependent on the
customer’s financial performance, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

96

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor,

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before

the amount becomes past due.
SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continueq)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continuea)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

98

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or 1oss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continuead)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 June 2018)

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including receivables and deposits,
amount owing from ultimate holding company, amount
owing from a shareholder, short-term bank deposits and
cash on hand and at bank) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9 on 1 June 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
IFRS 9 on 1 June 2018) (Continuea)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values, it is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

° the amount recognised initially less, where
appropriate the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance to the principles of IFRS 15.

Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities including payables
and accrued charges and amount owing to a director are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
considerations paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
when it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or
asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of uncertain future events not only wholly
within the control of the Group.

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

4.

B %5 R R B &E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next 12 months.

Upon application of IFRS 9, the Group uses simplified
approach in calculating allowance of ECL for trade
receivables by applying an ECL rate. The ECL rate is
determined based on the management’s assessment on
the individual customer’s credit risk grading dependent on
the customer’s financial performance, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions at the reporting date that is available without
undue cost or effort, including time value of money where
appropriate. At each reporting date, the ECL rate is
remeasured. The allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Before application of IFRS 9 on 1 June 2018, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a receivable is impaired. To
determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the counterparty and default or significant delay in
payments. The management also considers the
creditworthiness, the past collection history of each
customer, ageing analysis and subsequent settlement of
individual balances.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the
amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics.

The information about the ECL and the carrying amounts of
receivables at the reporting date are disclosed in Notes
26(b) and 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARSEHER

A. For the year ended 31 May 2019 A. BZE2019F5A31ALFE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BUPR B 15 s RIS 1557 B T &
customers under IFRS 15: BHWAZ D

Year ended

31 May 2019
BI£201955H318
FE

Total
ot

RM'000

Manufacturing and trading: BERES:
Sales of manufactured goods K miEE

Other building materials and services: — H @ EM B &R
Sales of building materials BEMEEE
Rental of crane services B E A E RIS

Japanese catering services HAREEE

Sourcing services KER®

Total @t

Geographical market: & 5
Malaysia BRP R
China - Hong Kong FE-FS

Total @t

Timing of revenue recognition LT\ T 32 e ]

At point in time L

Over time BiE B

Total B

HREBEAER AT / 2019F )

P
=

19,437

6,654
26
3,043
291

29,451

29,425
26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

108

Sales of manufactured goods and building
materials

Revenue from sales of manufactured goods and
building materials is recognised at a point in time
when the manufactured goods and building materials
are transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the manufactured
goods and building materials; and the Group has
present right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable.

Rental of crane services

Revenue from rental of crane services is recognised
over time, and the progress measured using the
output method based on the amount the Group has
right to invoice with application of practical expedient
in IFRS 15:B16 as the Group has right to consideration
from a customer in an amount corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance completed to date. The rental of crane
services are billed to client on daily basis.

Japanese catering services

The Group provides Japanese food on catering basis
to customer. Revenue is recognised at point in time
when the customer obtains the control of the food
and catering services and the Group has present right
to payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

sourcing services

The Group acts as an agent when its performance
obligation is to arrange for provision of specified
materials by another party to customer. The Group
does not control the specified materials. Therefore,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount of
commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified materials to
be provided by the other party.

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019

5.

WARZEESR (&)

REmREEMBEE

Sk mEEEM BN EERAR
HkmREEMHBERITEPH
FEE R AR P RGHRK MK
FREEFT R IR IR © AR B IR
BRNRE ARERRE -

EEHEERY

P RE R BIBR B 75 ¥R 5 2RI 5815
B16%% 1% - 2 B TH & AR5 UL A BE
FF R RE R, - M AR DR IR IB AN SR
EERLARZ SHABER
RESAEEE#ATFP IR
BERMERAKREEFES R
K2 ROBEZRE EEREE
RIFRRAEFWRER

AAEE
AEBAERRERATFEH
BARB -REFPBRSHRMEE
R EGIEAAEERKE
BXNRERKERTREE  #R
YA e

R R
ERNEBREER—HTRARRP
RHEEEMHE AEEERRRE
A o RS BT H 5 E WL o
b AEEEAWASE B AR
EEORE MBERZHS TR
HHY 8 TEFFL o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (#&)
(Continued)

B.

Transaction price allocated to the B.
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers

The Group has applied practical expedient in IFRS 15:
paragraph 121(a) and (b) to not disclose the
transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are part of contracts

that have original expected duration of one year or

less.

For the year ended 31 May 2018 C.
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as
follows:

TEERFEFSONTGRE
NEBRZXZER

AEBMBRABRRMIIRE LS
1S ERER 25 $1210@) & (D)
BUTHESRERBRBHNEBD
RHER MZEBHEBBRR
ATEREIR A — F LA THA LW

—#5

B Z2018F5A31B L FE
REEZ WA T -

Total revenue
F YN

RM'000

A=
< A

Manufacturing and trading: BERES:

Sales of manufactured goods B miH & 25,382
Other building materials and services: H M EME RRE

Sales of building materials BEMBEE 12,454

Sales of crane services REMEERE 116
Japanese catering services AARZEE 242
Total FE 38,194
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(Continued)

5.

D.

110

Operating Segment

Information reported to Mr. Loh Swee Keong, the
director of the Group, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is based on the following reportable and
operating segments identified under IFRS 8 Operating
Segments:

(@) Manufacturing and trading — manufacturing and
trading of precast concrete junction boxes;

(b)  Other building materials and services — trading
of accessories and pipes and provision of
mobile crane rental and ancillary services; and

(c) Japanese catering services - provision of
Japanese catering services.

(d) Sourcing services — provision of sourcing
services.

No operating segments identified by the CODM have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Segment revenues and results
For the year ended 31 May 2019

Other building
materials and
services
At g
HERES R R
RM'000 RM'000

Ax A+
38 38

Manufacturing
and trading

Revenue

External sales HNEpsEE 19,437 6,680
Inter-segment sales HEEE 7,174 943
Segment revenue AEHBA 26,611 7,623
Elimination B#
Group revenue SEWA
Segment result PHEE
Administrative expenses  THBI X
Selling and distribution ~ $#ERS AR
expenses ‘
Finance costs BEKAR
Other income EfA
Loss before taxation Bt ER
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WARDHESR (#)

D. K&

HRERDE RS BRATEED

fAASEBEZE = Loh Swee Keong

FE(NERFLEEREA(ERE

REREAN]) ) ERHER ThiR

T§|J$ETEIF”HH%$E¢Z§5'J%8%
KEDHLHBOATRERKEE D

ARIEL,

(@) HRERBEZH-FARERLIE
RENRENRES:

(b)  E 2SR KRS — B
REBEHARREBHA
HEERHEEREERS: &

© BAREBR-RHABRSE-

d ERBERSE - IRERBERS-

S¢

EGEE&ZIS%@E’UWA?&%%%EH%’
ERTEHEREERRAM
BB 8 2 7 #f o

DEHBMAREE
BZ2019%5H831HILLEE

Japanese
catering
services

sourcing
services

AARE RBE®
RM'000 RM'000

A% A=x
XA I8

3,043 291 29,451
o o 8,117

3,043 37,568

(8,117)

29,451
7,592

(8,737)

(1,125)
(14)
379

(1,905)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)
D. Operating Segment (continued)
Segment revenues and results (consinuea)
For the year ended 31 May 2018

WARDHESR (&)

D. & H (4

DEBARRE (#7)
BE2018F5A318 L FE

Manufacturing
and trading

Other building
materials and
services
Hfth 322 5

M R PR 7% ARZE
RM'000 RM'000

A+ A
~ A <A

Japanese
catering
services

Revenue WA

External sales SRR E 25,382 12,570 242 38,194

Inter-segment sales HEEBEE 7,167 3,313 — 10,480
Segment revenue A 32,549 15,883 242 48,674
Elimination g (10,480)
Group revenue SEIA 38,194
Segment result DEEE 7,982 632 147 8,761
Administrative expenses THRAX (7,469)
Selling and distribution HERDHEAX

expenses (1,195)
Listing expenses iRl 53 (2,336)
Finance costs BMERA (26)
Other income H A 356
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (1,909)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

D.

112

Operating Segment (continuea)

Segment revenues and results (continuea)
The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as
described in Note 3. Segment results represents the
profit from each segment without allocation of
administrative expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, finance costs, other income and taxation.
This is the measure reported to CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
rates with discount given for certain bulk purchase.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

As at 31 May 2019

Other

building

Manufacturing  materials and
and trading

Japanese

Catering

services Services
HpEE

HERES HARRH RAEE

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ AL AL
A YR XA

Non-current FRBEE
assets

Curentassets  REEE

Non-current FhBakE
liablities

Current liabiities  RE1& &

(4,487)
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5. WARDEBER (#)

D.

Sourcing
services

RERH
RM'000

Ax
NR

(291)

= #é‘. N S‘ZB (&)

“%WA&% (%)

R D BE Y S OR BB FE3AT
E’\J$$@ STBRAAR - o B4
TR D BT S - $HE M 3
P BEMA B A R FIA
AT 20 BB EE A © L RS ER 2 AL
RERBFEENMBRE T ERELE
REAWGET L

7 EPEHE LB RIS H R LA
TARRBHETORHAE-

THEERAEE
TXBEARE KRG LD R D0
AEEBERBESN

R2019%5H31H

Consolidated
assets
(liabilities)
GREE
(BR) (BR)
RM'000 RM'000

A< AL
R A

Segment
assets
(liabilities)
AREE

Unallocated

AR

650

- (281)
(5,668) (693)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARSHER (&)

(Continued)
D. Operating Segment (continued) D. ®REDE (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PTHEERER (&)
As at 31 May 2018 "2018%¥5H31H
Other
building Japanese Segment Consolidated
Manufacturing ~ materials and Catering assets assets
and trading SErvices Services (liabilities) Unallocated (liabilities)
(8&) ADE
RM'000 RM000
TRE E
Non-cumentassets  FERBIEE 3757 405 3% 4518 25 4,803
Current assets ik 19,109 9,091 595 28,795 14,309 43,104
Non-current liabiliies ~ FREVA(E - - - - (223) (223)
Current liabilities THak (7,886) (1,290) (197) (9,377) (619) (9,992
All assets and liabilities are allocated to operating BEFFENETES HinEN
segments other than certain cash on hand and at HE - RBLBELEHEEAEREE
bank, other payables, current and deferred tax assets INFTEBENBBIEEEZED
and liabilities. =i
Other segment information Hib o IER
For the year ended 31 May 2019 BI£2019F5A318LFE

Other
building Japanese
Manufacturing  materials and catering Sourcing
and trading services services services  Unallocated

RfrEs
REREZ  MHREH AAEE RERH
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At A+ At A+
<A <A NAR YA

Amounts included inthe B &R EAHAR
measure of segment BEAAYEAENS
profit or loss or segment %

assets:

Addttions to non-current FEFRHEE
assets

Factory rental IRHE

Shop rental EHEE
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mEMBRERHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARSHER (&)

(Continued)
D. Operating Segment (continueq) D. R&ESE (&)
Other segment information (continued) ,H\ﬂﬂ’\ﬁllﬁﬂ (%)
For the year ended 31 May 2018 BI£2018F5A31HLFE

Other
huilding Japanese
Manufacturing ~ materials and catering
and trading services services Unallocated

Kipjes
ZERES  HHREE = AAEE HE
RM0 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
74 4% T4E 5%

Amounts included in the  B3EZ T E A 25L&
measure of segment FBRASHEE

profit or loss or MeE:
segment assets:
Additions to non- REFTBEE
current assets 1172 — 359 280 1811
Factory rental IH#RE 480 — — — 480
Shop rental EREE - - % - 5
Geographical information i EE R
The Group earns revenue from external customers in AEBEMETFEHERINIEF 5
two main geographical areas: A
()  Malaysia — manufacturing and trading; and other (y Hkrhis - &2lERES &
building material and services H b2 2R & AR 7%
(i) China — Hong Kong — Japanese catering services; (i FE-FE-BAEAEE: &
and sourcing services HERG
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BEAAEBRBINTIEFRAHE
customers is presented based on the location of the B TVIRES B 25T

operations, as follows:

2019
2019£

RM'000

A+
I a8

Malaysia 26,117
China - Hong Kong FE — B 3,334 242

29,451 38,194

114 SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. WARSHER (&)

(Continued)

D. Operating Segment (continuead) D. R&ESE (&)
Other segment information continued) Eﬂﬂ" HER (&)
Geographical information (Continued) mEER (Z)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, capital addition in respect of
property, plant and equipment by the geographical
areas in which the assets are located:

Total assets
EERE
2019

2019£
RM'000

P
< A

Malaysia 30,490

2018
20184
RM'000

A=+
~X = <A

W B A E A 85 5
BEE HNE BERRELE
O RRELE 9 17 ¢

Capital addition property,
plant and equipment
NE- - -RERZHELE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RM’000 RM'000

1,184
359

China - Hong Kong PR — & 10,862 144
Unallocated Ko 724 14,594 —

Information about major customers

There is one customer from manufacturing and
trading segment contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 May
2019.

No customer contributes over 10% of total revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 May 2018.

42,076 47,907

HREBEAER AT / 2019F )

TEREFER
—RHERBIHBEFRAE
BEE201965A31H L FERE
Y A B B E10%

BEREEAAEEH E2018F45A8
MBLFENAEEE S A
10% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

6. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the Directors
of the Company (including emoluments for their services
as employees or Directors at the Group prior to becoming
the directors of the Company) are as follows:

For the year ended 31 May 2019

Executive Directors
YrEe

Mr. Loh Mr. Tan
Swee Keong  Cheng Siong

Loh Swee  Tan Cheng
Keong%%  Siong’t4
RM'000 RM'000

Ax Ax
NR NR

Directors: EES
Fees we
Other emoluments ; EhEn:
Salaries L3
Contributions to Employees ~ EERES
Provident Fund (‘EPF') ([EBRRE])
(Worg) 3
Total @t

For the year ended 31 May 2018

6. EEME
ENHENEARFESHIE (BIER
ERBARBEFTHNEAKETRIESR
HEFHRBME)FBWT:

BE2019F5A31HLLFE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFNTES
Mr. Mr. She
Mr. Chu Mr.Yau  Alexander Shing
Kin Ming KaHei Patrick Lee  Albert Ma Total

KREREE  BRERE  FRMAL RRERL #it
RM'000  RM000  RM000  RM000  RM'000

A+ At A+ Ax Ax
<A <A YA ~A NRA

Executive Directors
WIES
Mr. Loh Mr. Tan Mr. Chu Mr. Yau Mr. Alexander
Swee Keong Cheng Siong Kin Ming Ka Hel Patrick Lee
Loh Swee Tan Cheng
Keong & Siongfs & RiEmrs L SHERE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FLE R T2F 2 2E
Directors; £z
Fees e 120 93 68 68 68 47
Other emoluments; HiEM:
Salaries i 19 76 - - - 268
Contribution to Employee ~ EELES
Provident Fund ('EPF’) ([EaLRE])
ote) #3) 3 18 - - - 5
Total st 3% 187 68 68 68 1
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continuec)
Note:

The Group is required by Malaysian law to make monthly
contributions to the EPF, a statutory defined contribution plan for
all its eligible employees based on certain prescribed rates of the
employees’ applicable remuneration. Contributions are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they relate. The contributions
to EPF are disclosed separately and the contributions to EPF are
included in salaries, bonuses, allowances and other staff benefits.
Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further
payment obligations. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in future year.

Mr. Tan Cheng Siong resigned on 13 June 2018.

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, Mr. Yau Ka Hei and Mr. Lee, Alexander
Patrick were appointed as Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company on 27 June 2017.

Mr. Lee, Alexander Patrick resigned as Independent Non-
executive Director on 3 December 2018.

Mr. Ma, She Shing Albert were appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director on 3 December 2018.

During both periods, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of the office.

No Directors’ emoluments were waived during both
periods.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Group and of the Company. The
Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments were
for their services as Directors of the Company.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME
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Tan Cheng Siongt A 720186 H13H
BE-

KERLEE BRELERTHRBLEAE
TyR2017F6 827 B E R AL AR N 715
SIEBMITESE-

AR S £ R20184F 12 A3 B £
B EMITES -

EHELAN2018F12A3BEES I A
B EMITES -

RAEHREA - AEEY \ARARE
EXNEMME  (FRIMARSE BN
ARAA S B 5 1) SR B S AE BB (B -

RMESEAN HEREERENS -

FOIRMBITESHE I EER/WERM
RUAAEEAKERARAEBHHR
BRSME BYFATETZMET)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

7. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group included 2
and 1 Directors for the year ended 31 May 2018 and 31
May 2019 respectively, details of whose remuneration are
set out in Note 6. Details of the remuneration for the
remaining 3 and 4 highest paid employees who are neither
a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR
Bonuses FpEAN
Contributions to EPF BERBEMHR

The number of the highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HKD1,000,000

Z % 7L £1,000,0007% 7T

During both periods, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid employees of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of the office.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on: THEEMHF ST
Finance leases RERE
Other facilities H A gh&
Ccommitment fees BB
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TEBREHFMES
rEBERERaFMEEDABRERE
20185 A31H K2019F5 8318 ILEE
F2ERI1BES BAHFHFBENW
H6 oM TR RAEESHIEES (IER
NAIBEBERNETBITRAB)NEHMFE
B2l UNNE

2019
201945

RM’000

A+
I a8

891 723

77 66

789

UNTEIS&=HMER (FMNFIAT
FE) AR

RREHER AEETERDAQFD
HEEHMIERSMERME ERM
AREBE SR IAR KB 6 2Rk E

B & A

2019
20194
RM’000

A+
I a8




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRTiAIEIE
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging/ BRBEAEBENER, (GFA)UTEER
(crediting): EI

2019 2018
20194 20184
RM'000 RM’'000

A N
< R < B

Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2RI %7 B 713 498
Cost of inventories recognised as an R ARSI HNIFE/K KN

expense 15,347 21,807
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BIRA, TEIEEEFHM:

remuneration:
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — &4 ITEKREME

7 4,203

— Contributions to EPF — EEBRESMHK 356

4,559

Minimum lease payments on: T EENHEEERNTK:

Factory T 480

Crane HE BB 115

Shop I 8 56

Staff accommodation BIFES® 19

Office equipment N g 7
Depreciation of; AT EEFE :

Property, plant and equipment Y- WRE RF 535

Investment property wEYHE 10
Bad debts written off 2 BR 85 245
Allowance for credit losses EEEERE 200
Property, plant and equipment written S - BE MR E

off -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and &9 - BE M&EN

equipment E5 18 M
Impairment of goodwill (Note 37) P B R E M 7731) 10
Rental income from investment BEMENHHES KA

property )
Bad debt written back AR D —
Realised gain on foreign exchange BERE K s (132)
Allowance for credit losses no longer BB BE{EREEE

required 3)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign REIREH W) B8

exchange 982
Interest income on: AT &IEZFEWA -

Deposits at bank RITFER 35

Late payment from receivables TR S SR IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

10. TAXATION

Malaysia corporate income tax:
Current year
Underprovision in prior years
Deferred tax (Note 15):

Current year
(Over)/Under provision in prior years

10. HIH

2019
20194

RM’000

A+
I a8

ERETOEAEH
REE 1,095
BEEERETR i

AL B BT 22 715)

R "
BEEE (BERRE)/

BRI 5

44

1,181

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the
statutory tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for

each of the assessable year.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before taxation as follows:

BRADDRMEVI S BRI FEN
AT ERPEN IR ERRFTE -

FERBERHABROERNT

Loss before taxation BrE AT &R (1,909)
Statutory tax rate EEBE 24%
Taxation at applicable statutory tax rate  1&E R EEH R EH
g (458)
Tax saving of 7% (2018: 6%) (Note) EF7% (20185 : 6% )
(Hiaz) (60)
Tax effects of: NTEENRBLE:
Expenses not deductible for tax I b3
purpose 1,579
Income not taxable for tax purpose BARBUA (6)
Effect of different tax rate of entities HREMFEERELNE
operating in other jurisdictions BRNTRMETEE 83
Utilisation of deferred tax assets B A LRI AR ERE
previously not recognised EEFIRE E 2
Underprovision of income tax payable &1 & /£ J& < BT 13 5 59 5
in prior years BT 42
(Over)/Under provision of deferred tax @7 4 EEEFHEH
in prior years (HBEEEE) BETR 3
Taxation for the year FEMIE 1,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

10. TAXATION (Continuea) 10. BB
Note.  Under the Income Tax Act, 1967 of Malaysia, small and Htit: REBEBRAERIV67TFMBEFE B
medium enterprises in Malaysia with paid-up capital 2=2018F5A31H K2019F5H31H
amounting to RM2,500,000 or less are subject to income IEFE - RERATHRAHERAE
tax at the rate of 18% and 17% for the year ended 31 May 2,500,000% 7 sk LA R #y AR/ 1 2
2018 and 31 May 2019, on chargeable income amounting A5 BB R18% M1 7% & = B
to RM500,000 or less. For chargeable income in excess of 500,000% & # FE R B WA BN FT 15
RM500,000, the corporate income tax rate is 24% for the i o ZRHBIB500,0005 7 B FE AR B
year ended 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 respectively. WA B ZE20184F5A31H 2019
FEANBILEFE CEMERRE
2B F24% ©
11. LOSS PER SHARE 1. BREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the BRAEAXBERE TIEIETE

following data:

2019
20194

RM'000

P -
<A

REREREENS W

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per

share: Bt -
Loss for the year attributable to the KRARHEABGEFE
owners of the Company 518 (3,090)

Number of Number of
shares NIEIES
% 17 8 B & 2k B

Weighted average number of ordinary BRI ESREREIEL
shares for the purpose of calculating 3% 3@ B hn# F 5 &1

basic loss per share 620,000,000 536,768,465
No diluted loss per share information has been presented AR E E201845A31H K201945 A31
for the year ended 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 as there HIEFEHERBLINGT MR i)
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both W h L E 2 25 T REEBEN
years. ERo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
The directors of the Company do not recommend the AKRAREEBTERZIKN B E2018F54
payment of dividend for the year ended 31 May 2018 and 318 K2019F5A31A L FERRKRE °
31 May 2019.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERRE

Leasehold
land and  Plant and Motor Office  Computer
building machinery  vehicles Renovation Mould  Factory equipment  software

AELH
kBT HEREH nE 3] BR IE WOERE  EHBA
RM000  RM000  RMO00  RMOO0  RWOO0  RMOO0  RMOOO  RMOOD

THE AR FAE T4 AR FAR TR T4

Cost A

At1June 2017 R017E6A1E 365 2471 1,199 398 320 232 701 19 5,705
Additions WNE - 547 1,041 42 129 — 52 — 1,811
Disposal hE - - (251) - - - - - (251)

At 31 May 2018/ 12018554318/

1 June 2018 01856810 365 3018 1,989 440 449 232 753 19 7,265
Additions AE - 30 - 130 1,144 4 20 - 1,328
Write off s - (13) - - - - - - (13)
Fxchange differences EXZ%E - 19 15 - - - - - 31
At 31 May 2019 R2019F5A318 365 3,004 2,004 570 1,593 236 773 19 8,614

Accumulated 2itiE

depreciation
At 1 June 2017 R017E6A18 110 1147 375 138 179 110 409 19 2487
Depreciation FRfE

for the year 7 206 165 0 3 19 58 - 535
Elimingtedupon ~ HEEHH

disposal - = (13 = — = - - (13
Exchange differences EXZE - - V) - - - - - ()

A3 May 2018/ HO0I8ESAIE/

1 June 2018 018F6A1A 17 1,353 403 179 218 129 467 19 2,885
Depreciation ERiTE

for the year 7 417 198 61 106 19 61 - 869
Bxchange differences EHZE - 4 2 - - - - - 6
At 31 May 2019 201954318 124 1,774 603 240 34 148 528 19 3,760

Carryingvalue  HEE
At 31 May 2019 R2019F5A318 241 1,280 1,401 330 1,269 88 245 - 4,854
At 31 May 2018 201854318 248 1,605 1,586 261 21 103 286 - 4,380
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mEMBHRRME

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contivec) 13. W% - BERB1E (&)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except Lz BMEREZEER (E2T1E
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a BRoN) AERER AT FRITE -
straightline basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building 2% ELHREF 2%
Plant and machinery 10% R = K A 10%
Motor vehicles 10% TE 10%
Renovation 10% =& 10%
Mould 10% RA 10%
Factory 10% T 10%
Office equipment 10% i R/NE L 10%
Computer software 20% BB 20%
The Group has pledged leasehold land and building with a 2018F5H31H &2019F5A31H K&
carrying value of approximately RM248,000 and RM241,000 EE 2 EIFIRMEE D B 49248,0009 F
as at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 respectively, to secure 241,000 EMBE L MEF  EAN
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed EEMERN —RBITHENER (10
in Note 28. M sE28FTHR R ) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. BEWYE
RM'000
A=+
~< A
Cost B 7
At 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2018 20187201745 A318 Kk2018F5H31H 450
Accumulated depreciation ZHE
At 31 May 2017 12017458318 49
Charge for the year FRMG 10
At 31 May 2018 R2018F5H31H 59
Charge for the year FRMk 10
At 31 May 2019 R2019%5 4318 69
Carrying value REE
At 31 May 2019 R2019F5A318 381
At 31 May 2018 P201855A31H 391

The investment property, comprising of a freehold land and
building in Malaysia, is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 50 years.

Rental income earned by the Group from the investment
property which is leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately RM2,000 for the year ended 31
May 2018. Direct operating expenses incurred in respect of
the investment property amounted to RM798 and RM873
for the year ended 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

15.

The fair values of the Group’s investment property were
estimated by the directors at RM690,000 and RM690,000 at
31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 respectively based on the
valuation report on the investment property in prior year
and updated to take into consideration certain recent
transactions involving similar properties in the vicinity. The
fair value is a Level 3 fair value estimation. In estimating
the fair value of the property, the highest and best use of
the property is its current use.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes
relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
statements of financial position:

Deferred tax assets REFIRE E
Deferred tax liabilities RAERIBEE

14. REWE (&)

15.

HREBEAER AT / 2019F )

#2018 5H31H &2019F5A831H -
HEFAMETASENREMEATE
7 5l £690,000% & &%690,000% & -
BEEAFREMENGERSE W E
NOT B R R B EN R 5
BH-FBEEE=-AAFEMBE -RE
AMEAFER MENERS RRER
BREEERITAS

IEE B H

68 G ENITHRN AT AN IRE EY
$HENHATR IR B (B A K fin IR A A TR B R —
MG HERRE AECHBEERAE
TUAEE U THRIERELHERE
IR B AROR R -

2019
2019£€

RM’000

A=
<A

32
(223)

(191)

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

15. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 15. EERIE (#)

At beginning of year RF )

Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) BBk (#iF10) 44
At end of year RER 191
The deferred tax asset/liability mainly represent the tax EERBEE,/ BEXZEDE KE
effect of (deductible)/taxable temporary differences arising NRENREE (TR, EERE
from property, plant and equipment. BFiEZ=5E o

16. INVENTORIES 16. &

At cost: RAAN -
Raw materials and consumables MR K 5H #7E 636
Finished goods BIPK 714
1,350
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17. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 17. B FIE - R & RFBEI R

Trade receivables B 5 W IR 18,724
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEBERE (373)
18,351
Other receivables Ho b e W Fk IR 550
Deposits e 595
Prepayments AR 324
Advance to suppliers T HERH K 77
13,501 19,897
The amounts due from trade debtors are unsecured, do not ERESEFREERE TS MAE
carry any interest and the credit term granted by the Group E AT aE EH N F30E 1208 ©
ranges from 30 to 120 days.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net INTABEZEZEAHZMNE S EUK
of allowance for credit losses) presented based on the B (KR REEBERE) Rk

invoice date.

1-30 days 1£30H 5,787
31-60 days 31E60H 4,298
61-90 days 61£290H 3,309
91-120 days 912120H 1,812
More than 120 days 1208 A £ 3,145

18,351
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mEMBRERHE

17. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 17. BEWWFIE  RERFEMNR (&)

128

(Continued)

As of 31 May 2018, trade receivables of RM10,013,000,
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default and have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no allowance for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
these balances were either subsequently settled or there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered recoverable.

The following is an ageing of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired based on invoice date.

B Z2018%5A31H * 10,013,0002 & &
B 5 WA R B B8 KIEE - B B
BERZBTANEE REFEFPTE
MEE MR e WERAKERER RIFH
EELE - REBELR ARAEER
RBEARZSEHRELRERE B
REEREERREBFREAGFEERY
BEAEY MRFERDFESAIN
Ym -

AT RRERERHERREREEDN
B 5 RN R -

31-60 days 31260H 3,526
61-90 days 61290H 2,467
91-120 days 912120H 1,202
More than 120 days 120H BA 2,818

10,013

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts:

REEBEZHWT

2018
20184

RM'000

A=
~< A

At beginning of year REH 176
Impairment losses made during the year FAEERAERE 200
Impairment losses no longer required BEBIERERE ©)
At end of year RER 373

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are fourteen
individually impaired trade receivable with balance of
approximately RM373,000 as at 31 May 2018, which has
been placed in severe financial difficulties. The Group does
not hold any collateral over this balance.

* This is disclosure requirement before application of
IFRS 9: Information about the credit quality of
financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired. No such requirement under IFRS 7 after
application of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME

18. AMOUNTS OWING FROM ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY AND A SHAREHOLDER
AND AMOUNT OWING TO A DIRECTOR
The amount owing from ultimate holding company is
non-trade nature, unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

The amount owing from a shareholder is non-trade nature,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The
amount owing from a shareholder is the same at the
beginning and at the end of the financial year respectively
and the maximum amount outstanding during the financial
year is RM7,000

The amount owing to a director, Mr. Loh Swee Keong, is
non-trade nature, unguaranteed, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The amount owing to a director
of RM12,000 in 2018 represents expenses paid on behalf.

19. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

18. BRBRERAARRRRER
ENESNRE

R SRR AR RERIFESHIEE -
BER RENRARERER-

EUBERRELFESEE - EEM
2B RARBERERE - EWRRRKIAR
MBFENRFERGER - BRMBFE
ZEBAEESBERITSE -

JE {12 = Loh Swee Keongst 4 B A IF
BHME EER BEF 2R RAR
DREE-N2018F BN ESFHE
12,0008 EMeBIER AL HHAXZ -

19. BEHRTER RERRTEER

2019
20194

RM’000

A=

< A

Current: B A :
Short-term bank deposits K EIERITIE R 401
Cash on hand and at bank FHEKIETES 21,075
Total Bt 21,476
Less: Deposits pledged as security W BEEREERZFR (407)
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 21,075

Short-term bank deposits of the Group have an average
maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months. Bank balances are
deposits held at with licensed banks.

The average interest rates of deposits of the Group are
ranging from 2.95% to 3.20% and ranging from 2.19% to
3.60% per annum as at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019
respectively. Included in the short-term bank deposits are
amounts totaling RM401,000 and RM1,034,000 that have
been pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group as at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019
respectively as disclosed in Note 28.

AEEEBHETEROTHERANT
138 A < BT AR AT B R IR AT
B -

#2018 5A31H K2019F5A31H » &
SEERNFHFRED BN F2.95%
£3.20% K%2.19% E3.60% ° 1A20184F5
A31H &2019F5831H - i ER 17 1%
HBeERBES R AL01,0008F
1,034,000 HEMEEHEE  UART
AEBME—MIBTTREE R ER (W
FI28FTHEE) ©
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REMBHRRME

20. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

Trade payables B 5 RIE
Accrued charges EETE A
Other payables H A FE A 5RI18
Advance from customers BEEBX
Customers’ deposits BEPRE

20.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice dates:

1-30 days 1£230H
31-60 days 31&260H
61-90 days 61%290H
91-120 days 91&120H
Over 120 days 120H LA £

130
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BARERETER

993
712
78
1

9,937

BHREMNFRRER AR M RE

DM

1,932
3,141
2,360
462
248

8,143




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

20. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (continued) 20. FENFERESER (&)

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to BEMFYEEHA0ESH AEH
75 days. The Group has financial risk management policies BB YR b T I R AEIRET B AT
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the RIEHTEEHRANEE -

credit timeframe.

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. BXK

Number of
shares Share capital

B3 B E B
‘000 HK$'000 RM'000
TR T 4%

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 &R E{E0.01E LK

each LA
Authorised: ERE
1 June 2017 20176 A1H 38,000 380
Increase of authorised share &Nk E R AN (H#fita)

capital (note a) 9,962,000 99,620

At 31 May 2018/31 May 2019 #2018F5H31H

20195H31H 10,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE:
1 June 2017 2017F6 H1H 10 — —
Issue of share BBEE R EITRGD

by capitalisation (note b) (H&th) 439,990 4,400 2,400
Issue of new shares by way of BiEE & R AR EE

placement and public BITERRAD (M ath)

offering (note b) 180,000 1,800 982

At 31 May 2018/31 May 2019 #2018F5H318
2019F5H31H 620,000 6,200 3,382
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21. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:.

(@) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
authorised share capital was increased from HKD380,000
comprising 38,000,000 shares at par value of HKD0.01 each
to HKD100,000,000 comprising 10,000,000,000 shares of par
value of HKD0.01 each, by way of creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 shares at par value of HKDO0.01 each.

(b)  On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company, conditional
upon the crediting of the Company’s share premium
account as a result of the issue of the public offer shares
and the placing shares for the proposed initial listing of
shares of the Company on the GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the directors of the Company were
authorised to capitalise an amount of HKD4,399,000
(equivalent to approximately RM2,400,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum towards the paying up in full at par a
total of 439,990,000 shares for allotment and issue to the

shareholders as of 27 June 2017 (“Capitalisation”).

On 19 July 2017, the Company has successfully listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and made
an offering of 162,000,000 new shares by way of placement
and 18,000,000 new shares by public offering priced at
HKDO.28 per share (“Placement and public offering”). On the
same date, the Company has completed the capitalisation
issue to the shareholders after the successful listing on the

GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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21. RA& (#)

At

(@)

RIEAR R RMN201746 A27 HiEBH)
EMERZER - FILHRTEIN,962,000,0008%
BREECOVETHRG A ERAH
380,0007% 7t (42 #%38,000,0000% & A%
B0.0178 7T HIAR 17 ) 185 % 100,000,000/ 7T
(8 #£10,000,000,0008% % % [ {50.0178%
TR ) ©

RA  BEARFRREBEBNE RS
& FARREMRG & ERE LR
RAIBMERREEMARISMAR
A AGEMET #1723 R M
EROMBBERR READAES
HARBBRODEERNERS R
4,399,0007% 7T (48 & 7 £92,400,000%
TIRAER HERNBARSER
T {8 2 814 £ 439,990,0000% Bc 3 K2 3%
T TEE2017F6H27 B IR R &7
(T&=x1E]) -

R2017F7R198 KRB EKNRE
BHERSARARGEM LT » WA
g £ 712 3032 2 % 55 162,000,00088 5 B
B RERARAHEBERARZEES
18,000,0008% 1 i% 17 + {8 1% A& & f%0.28
B (BEERAHEE]) -RAA &
RAIRENEEEBERIAERA
AIGEM_E 118 Fe pR M IR SR 1T & AN (b
AT o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

21.

22,

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 21.

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)
This has resulted in the issued and paid-up share capital
increased from HKD100 comprising 10,000 shares at par
value of HKDO0.01 each to HKD6,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately RM3,382,000) comprising 620,000,000 shares
at par value of HKD0.01 each.

All ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 June 2017, the
Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme. No option was granted as at the date of this
report.

SHARE PREMIUM 22.

At beginning of year F1)

Issue of new shares by way of BRRERAFBEESFR
placement and public offering BITH R,
(Note 21(b)) (K1:£21(b))
Less: Capitalisation (Note 21(b)) W B (HEE210))
Transaction cost attributable to BITFREMLNRZ S
issue of new shares AR
At end of year FR

B (#)
fiE: (4)

b (&)
MR EHE BT RATRAHI100BT
(£2510,0000% & i  {£0.0178 7T #9 ik
) # 56,200,000 7T (16 & 7 4
3,382,000< &) (£ 1%620,000,000/%
FHREECOVETLHARL) -

PRERFRETHERREZEREAN
ERERESTEHZ ARSI -

RIEA R RIREN2017F6R278 @B
MEMRZER ARAICDHGRERA—
TRRE R HERT &) - RATRE B BHER
EREEET e

gl ai]

26,511
(2,400)

(4,220)

19,891
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23.

24.

25.

134

OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019
represented the aggregate amount of the fully paid
registered or paid-in capital of Target Precast Industries
Sdn Bhd, Target Sales & Marketing Sdn Bhd, Target Crane &
Logistic Sdn Bhd, Gallant Empire Limited, SK Target Holdings
Sdn Bhd and Loyal Earn Limited.

TRANSLATION RESERVE

The translation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group's
presentation currency.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
balance. Equity balance consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
retained profits.
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23.

24.

25.

Hitnf#

#2018 5A31H &2019F5A31B M E
{5 ¥ 8 Target Precast Industries Sdn
Bhd, Target Sales & Marketing Sdn Bhd,
Target Crane & Logistic Sdn Bhd,
Gallant Empire Limited, SK Target
Holdings Sdn BhdfzLoyal Earn Limited
B RaMERE R EE-

BE 718

SNESIE N R A RN B REDEER T
RRAKEZ25EEMINEEBEOT B
BRELMENERE-

EXxmERERE
AEEERRAAURRACESER
TS R BB E T RIS
F AR SIAMEBRBAB BN
AEEERERRETE

ARBEHEAEBERERE  RITIE
FORBIES BN - BB EAR
A AR A B8 R RRB
-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

25. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuec) 25. EXEBERE (#)
The management of the Group reviews the capital AEBEEE BHEXRFERELRERE-
structure on an on-going annual basis. As part of this ERBEGRHN o0 TAEEEREZE
review, the management of the Group considers the cost of BARARSHEERBARR - BIEAR
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. SEHERENZE AEEFRBIRNS
Based on recommendations of the management of the RENREITHEEREEESFEHE
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure BEEE AR

through the payment of dividends as well as the issue of
new debt and repayment of debt.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26 €T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) E@MIT EHEHA
2019
20194

RM'000

A=
<A

Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at REHEK AT EN

amortised cost EHMEE -
Loans and receivables (including & 2 & & Uk 7k 78

cash on hand and at bank) (BIEFERRTES) 41,067
Financial liabilities ERas
Amortised cost B $H PR AN 9,949

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEBREEEBEREEK

and policies
The Group's major financial instruments and details AEENTESHIARZESH
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the TEAMFEREBEMTERE - EZ
respective notes. The risks associated with these Lo E T EMAREM R R &R
financial instruments and the policies on how to ZERBAOBERHYWOT -

mitigate these risks are set out below.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

136

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the Group’s bank balances.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely
monitors its exposure to future cash flow interest rate
risk as a result of changes in market interest rates
and will consider hedging changes in market interest
rates should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

NoO sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances
as the management of the Company considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank are minimal and
the impact from the exposure to interest rate risk
sensitivity is considered insignificant.

currency risk

The Group has certain bank balances denominated in
HKD other that the functional currency of respective
group entities, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.
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mEMBRERHE

26 €T A (#)
(b) BIEEREREBERBR

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continuead)

currency risk (Continued)

If the currency of the respective cash and bank
balances had been 5% higher/lower, the post-tax 10ss
of the Group for the year will decrease/increase by:

/43 )
(#25)

E¥ERE (&)

E¥RER (B)HERERRITE
BRI EETHE/ZE 5% 8 A% E
RE R BLR 518 1 A /48 o

The Group
rEH
2019

20194
RM’000

A=

HKD BT

<A

742

Credit risk and impairment assessment
The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily due to
the collectability risk of the trade receivables. The
length of the credit period granted by the Group will
depend on the customers’ scale of operation,
reputation and credibility. The Group performs on-
going credit evaluation on the financial condition of
trade debtors and tightly monitors the overdue debts.
The Group will take the necessary follow up action in
case of long outstanding debts or when the above
credit evaluation results draw the attention of
management.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which might cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk with its exposure spread over a large number of
customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good
credit ratings and the Group has limited exposure to
any single financial institution.

1= & /2 B 2 R {8 5T ik
AEESRNEERRIERHR
B 5 & W R IR Y B Y o0 Rz P2 o
AEEMETEEHNHREET
EPMEERBR BEREEM
E o ANEELE 5 ER AR
METHENEENG YEHE
RBMES - HERPREEER
F LM EEAERTEEEER
EoAREEB R L EOHRET
o

RERESHR  AERBEEEF K
BEEITREAEREXNARET IR
AMEHNESEERR  JRE
KR E ISR R PR AERE B fERR
EREENREE-

A AR AR
EMRR S HEARES -

mMREF 7 ABER RIFEEFRN
RIT - AARE B E -
BAIEHOEBRBR  BAEER
BESHNEERRITER-
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26 €M I A (&)
(b) BiEEREREBERBR

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

138

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade recelvables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 (2018:
incurred loss model) on trade balances individually. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal credit Description

rating
ABEEFR S

EERBRRERE (&)

EFPEMELNEZREWIE

AREEREEERR AEEEE
B — B SR F AR R EREUR i
TEEYCE HER - ARBERER
BN B 75 S 5 E R SL O R IR IR TR
HEEBEERA 018F : BEL
ERIR ) B 5 R AGRIR ([E 51
TTRER G -BLtm S ARAE
ERRAEENEERRE NIE

B AR

A& B A BE & =R T ARG
BREA TR :

Trade receivables

85 EhRE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL - not
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

igEN REEFHFNENRRRE BYBCAOHKE 2HEHEEER

REEEERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL - not
usually settle after due date credit-impaired

ERRE ERALEROHBREN EREROHEELE 2HEHEEER
] REEEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL - not
risk since initial recognition through information  credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

e NABKINHEREGNERNBRANERAUNR 2HEREEER
EERBEZEM ABEEERE

LosS There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired

B8 ARBEREECRERGERNA 2HRHEEER

EREEERNE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtorisin -~ Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ki FEBETERARARENNBRELASEY FEFEEMSE

EERURE AR BE
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Other financial
assets
Htt e mEE

12-month (“12m") ECL

1208R8 (M2E A1)
BREEER

12m ECL
NEAEHEERSE
Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

2HEREEER
ABEEEERE

Lifetime ECL - credit-

impaired

2HBRHEEER
BELEEERNAE

Amount is written off

BRI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) 26 €@ TH (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MKEMEEEEZERBE

and policies (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FERBRRBENMG (&)
(Continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with EFEFEHNELERE ZMEKNIE
customers (Continued) (#&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRALAEEAEZEREEE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL BIEMNSREENEERRR
assessment: H:

External Internal
credit credit
rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount

ABEEFR  ABEEFR  2EARRAEAREER AREE
RM'000

At
XA

Financial assets at amortised cost

REHERAHENSREE
Amount owing from ultimate
holding company 18 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 9
JEW R AR 1 B3R IE TiER (H3E1) REABHEEES
Amount owing from a
shareholder 18 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 7
EMRETR THEA (B3E1) REAEHEEFR
Short-term bank deposits 19 A1, AAA N/A 12m ECL 6,034
S TER PEABHEEESR
Cash at bank A1, AA3, AAA N/A 12m ECL 14,909
RTAS TER REAEHEEFR
Other receivables 17 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 2,755
EfRYGR TER (WsE1) REAEHEEFR
Deposits 17 N/A (Note 1) 12m ECL 746
&e TiER (B3E1) PEABHEEESR
Trade receivables - goods
and services 17 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL - not
BHRWTE-ENR RS NEE ERR credit-impaired 2527
CHESEEFA
AEEREHE
Watch list Lifetime ECL - not
BERizE credit-impaired 4,185
*HBEHEEEE
REAEERE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL - not
& credit-impaired 1,512
FHESEERS
REEEERE
L0SS Lifetime ECL -
B credit-impaired 1,836
HEBEEFA
BEEEERE
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

140

and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade recelvables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Note:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

Amount owing from ultimate & W & 4232 A% 2 &)

holding company B
Amount owing from a FE Y AR R R IE
shareholder
Other receivables H 8 WK B
Deposits Be

26 €@ IT R (&)

(b)

Past due
B

RM'000

T4

2,296

BHEREEEEREER
(%)
&R R R R E G (F)

FEFAMNELNE S MM HE
(%)
At

1. BANEERREREMS A&
B RA AR BV nTER
BEERRETCAEBEM-

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
terms

RAW EEE
B AR
RM'000

A=
< A

9 9
7 7
459 2,755
746 746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
mEMBRERHE

STATEMENTS

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 26 €WMIT A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BEEMEEBEERBEK

and policies (continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)

= HEH

FEER
REE
FERE
RM'000

AN =
< A

(%)
FE RN EFE (F)

EFAENELNEZERNA
(%)
TRIIRBECTTERE BB
FIRERN 2 HEHREEERNE
o

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)

= HEH
FEEBE
B84
FEERE
RM'000

A=+
~< A

As at 1 June 2018 A2018F6H1H - 373 373
- Impairment losses recognised — & #ERRIERIE 27 - 27
- Impairment losses reversed — — & EIREE1E - (110) (110)
- Write-offs — A - (161) (161)
As at 31 May 2019 M2019%5H31H 27 102 129

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings.

8 & HBURMETS AE R EM
PR B EFR I8 Y Ol 5K IR R Al
= (WEB AR R ST AW ETR
Fro B SE B 3H B 5 8 W koA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 26 eI A (#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities which has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for the financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows, to the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted

(b)

BHEREEEEREER
(%)

RBESRER
EEEBRBECRARE  AEEYH
REMRGEEMKFETER
W HEEFEERERRRIARE
SEEHLERHESHKF A
BMIBRERERBOTE -

TERHANAEEFTESHAED
RIERBHFH - ZRRAEE A
ERMNFN&EF BT ESR
BERMRASREI R -HEA
BRI EH B AR W EE KA HM
=

RPBENERASHEERE
MERFBHME APRER SRR
WERROF KR H -

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
AMERE
P2EART 1228 YL hEAEA RHE
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

A+ At AL AL AL
NAR NAR NAR NAR NA

On demand or
less than
12 months

average
effective
interest rate
nE¥s
ERAI=

Total carrying
amount

1t0 2 years

Over 2 years

As at 31 May 2018 R2018%5A31A

Payebles and accrued charges  ERFUEREH B - 9937 - - 9937 9937
Amountowing to adirector  ENEEFE - 12 - - 2 2
As at 31 May 2019 R2019%58318

Payables and accrued charges  FERZUBR B E

142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR B AL
26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contined)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company provides financial guarantees to banks
for banking facilities of its subsidiary company. The
Company monitors on an ongoing basis, the results of
the subsidiary company and repayments made by the
subsidiary company. The maximum exposure to credit
risk are equivalent to the amounts of the banking
facilities utilised by the said subsidiary company as of
the reporting date. As of the reporting date, there was
no indicator that the subsidiary company would
default on repayment.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values. Fair values
of the financial assets and financial liabilities have
been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being
the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details the reconciliation of opening and
closing amounts in the consolidated statement of financial
position for each liability for which cash flows have been
or would be, classified as financing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

26 TR I A (#)

RBESERE (&)
ARBEREMB AR ZRITRHE
ARTTIEH R BER - AR AR E
EPEP B R B A KB RIE R - P
T b 2 B K {5 & L 48 2 0 P st PR
BRAREERS B HAE A ZRT
MECHE -BEMEEH HED
KRR PFME QR R RIE K

EERH REAVWBHRRIZEIH
RAABRNE S REEREMES
MEENREEEEAFERS-
Hive@MEEREMESRABNR
FEEREBEAREERAIZHRR
ERENNEE ARE28H A
BRARBREFHEERBRARR

27. MEFHELENEEHERT

TERINGARSRBERD RIS E
BREFDHRL KRS AAERGS
BT HROR 2 2 ) R R & 18 U R o

%
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mEMBRERHE

27.

28.

144

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

At
beginning

of year
RED
RM’'000

A=+
<A

27. MEFRBHELENEBHEERT

Interest
expense
FEEX

RM’000

A =%
< A

(%)

Cash Flows At
HeERE end of
Drawdown Repayment year
RE HiZE REXR
RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000

A=t P A %=
<A < A < A

2018
Current liability: mE B E:
Finance lease BERSE 172 - - 172 -
Amount owingtoa  FEft—HREEKIE
director 570 - 12 570 12
Interest payable FE AT F) B - 26 - 26 -
Non-current liability:  FERBI A E:
Finance lease BERE 411 - - 411 -
2019
Current liability: MENBAE:

Amount owingtoa  Eft—REEKIE
director

Interest payable FEATFB

BANK FACILITIES

28.

A subsidiary company of the Group has banking facilities
amounting to RM5,750,000 and RM5,750,000 as at 31 May

2018 and 31 May 2019 respectively.

These facilities are secured by:

(i)  leasehold land and building with a carrying amount of

RM248,000 and RM241,000 as at 31 May 2018 and 31

May 2019 respectively;

SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019
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AERMEE 5 5 A248,0008 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

28. BANK FACILITIES (Continued) 28. IRITRLE (&)

(i) fixed deposits amounting to RM401,000 and (i) F2018F5H31H K201945A31
RM1,034,000 as at 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 H % Bl 5401,000% & 1,034,000
respectively; and LEMTEEEFER &

(iliy corporate guarantee by the Company amounting to (iiy  #2018F 54318 KX201945 A 31
RMS5,750,000 and RM5,750,000 as at 31 May 2018 and H 7R 2 742 # 895,750,000 &
31 May 2019. 5,750,000% & A Al &R ©

There are utilisation of banking facilities amounted to #H E2018F5H318 &201945H318 -

RM534,000 as of 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 BAMRITRLE 5 B /A534,0009 F °

respectively.

29. LEASE COMMITMENT 29. HEXIE

The Group as lessee AEBEAEABEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEBRR  AEERBETATEUERIL

commitments for future minimum lease payments in EHEFBRIR JEE BEIESRHA

respect of factory, shop, staff accommodation and office RN R R R E N R ER TR
equipment under non-cancellable operating leases which fEl 21 B8R

fall due as follows:

2019
2019£

RM'000

P -
< =3

Within one year —F A 1,525
In the second to fifth year E_EZhF (BEEEMS)
inclusive 1,016 589

2,541 1,497
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30. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 30. RMIB AR KR
During the year, the Company has direct and indirect FR-ARARTIMBRAREEESE
shareholders/equity interests in the following subsidiary R EBERE RN
companies:

Equity attributable to the Group

rEBELRE
Issued and As at As at
Place of fully paid-up 31 May 31 May
Name of Company incorporation share capital 2019 2018 Principal activities

ERTR i i
BE 2019%F 20184
o0 AR 3L i B ('€ 5A31H 5A31H

Target Precast Industries Sdn.  Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of precast

Bhd. BRAEE 500,000% & concrete junction boxes

RENEERHRRLIERS

Target Sales & Marketing Sdn. ~ Malaysia RM70,002 100% 100% Trading of precast concrete junction
Bhd. BREE 70,0025 F boxes and accessories and pipes
EERAURRI R REHREE

Target Crane & Logistic Sdn. Malaysia RM100 100% 100% Provision of mobile crane rental
Bhd. BRAE 10059 & and ancillary services
REBEACEREEREERS

Gallant Empire Limited* British Virgins US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Island 1,000 7T % &R
RBREXHS
SK Target Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100% 100% Investment holding
BREDR 1002 F REER
Loyal Earn Limited Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100% Provision of sourcing of material
BB 1%t suppliers services

BRALA SRR (R RS IR 7

Target Foundry Sdn Bhd' Malaysia RM100 100% 100% Inactive
R 10025 Emez

Extra Mega Limited? Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100% Provision of Japanese catering services
&R 1T R ER RS

* Directly held by the Company * BAARNREERSE
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mEMBHRRME

30. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
(Continued)
Notes:

(1

On 1 September 2017, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Target Foundry Sdn Bhd (“Target
Foundry”), a dormant company incorporated in Malaysia,
for a cash consideration of RM100 from Mr. Loh Swee Keong,
a director of the Company and his sibling, Ms. Loh Lily. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was RM10,338 (Note 31).

Extra Mega Limited (“"EML") was incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability on 4 April 2018. On the date of
incorporation, EML allotted and issued as fully paid one (1)
share (representing the entire share capital of EML) to the
initial subscriber, which was then transferred to Gallant
Empire Ltd. at the consideration of HKD1 on 26 April 2018.
EML is engaged in the provision of Japanese catering
services in China — Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiary companies had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.

30. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES (continued)

Bt -

(1

R2017F9R18  AEBBEARAES
Loh Swee Keongst 4 K& E f fkLohLily
7z + Ya B Target Foundry Sdn Bhd
([Target Foundry |) & 22 317X
AN AE A — MR E R AL
WERAR RERERI00LH
ZWEREDEABUEEAR - WES
HATEARNEEEEA10,338%F (K
F31) o

Extra Mega Limited ([EML |) #2018
FARMBERAFME L ABERAT -
REEMA S B 8 EMUA SR B =
fid 8 R 21T — (AR AR 1 (FHE R EMLEY
E2EBRA) FLSREA - E1£7R2018
FA4RA268 LR BB TEE T Gallant
Empire Ltd. - EMLR AR BEIE B & & B AR

BRE-

BENB AR N RERRETERNE
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REMBHRRME

31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 31.
On 1 September 2017, Target Precast acquired Target
Foundry for a consideration of RM100.

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition were
as follows:

W kB Bt B A A
M2017F9 818 » Target Precastit i&
Target Foundry - (X {E &1002 & °

WEELTEERBEBNT:

Bank balances IRITHE R 100
Payables and accrued charges JE 151 R TE K flE 1B 2 (10,338)
Net identifiable liabilities AI#AFAE (10,238)
Fair value of net identifiable liabilities AHFAaENATE (10,238)
Goodwill EES 10,338
Fair value of purchase consideration WERENRATE 100
The cash outflow on acquisition is as follow: U EEMIRSREMT -
Purchase consideration satisfied by cash R & RS RE 100
Cash and cash equivalent of subsidiary BWENBARNRERESEEY

company acquired (100)

Net cash outflow of the Group AEBNIE SR FRE -

In view of the dormant status of Target Foundry since
Target Foundry its date of incorporation, the directors of
the Company concluded that the goodwill arising from the
acquisition should be impaired in full (Note 9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

32.

33.

34.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group has provided
a performance guarantee in respect of a project signed
with Telekom Malaysia Berhad, a customer, amounting to
RM534,000 for securing a project. This guarantee will be
discharged upon the completion of the project.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(@) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in
Note 18.

(b) The remuneration paid or payable to the key
management personnel, being the directors of the
Company, during the year is included in Note 6. The
remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individuals and market trends.

(c)  Acquisition of the entire interest in Target Foundry
Sdn. Bhd. from Mr. Loh Swee Keong, a director of the
Company and Ms. Loh Lily, the sibling of Mr. Loh Swee
Keong as disclosed in Note 30.

LITIGATION

On 26 October 2017, a subsidiary company of the Group
has filed a writ and statement of claim in Kuala Lumpur
High Court to premise the invalidation of the registered
patent of precast concrete junction box cover purportedly
held by the former supplier.

On 8 June 2018, the suit was withdrawn upon a settlement
agreement entered into by both parties on 7 June 2018 that
the former supplier shall pay a total of RM80,000 to the
subsidiary company.

The settlement amount had been received by the
subsidiary during the financial year ended 31 May 2019.

32.

33.

BRER

RBRERR AEBEERE—BEFP
Telekom Malaysia Berhad% £ 1918 B 12
HE O ER - £ % 5534,0008 5 © AHE
REMER -ZERENIER THIER

BT RS
(@) HEABTWEBRNES BRI
=N M 18 EE

) FRENHENEZEEAE (F
ARREF)HH B M F6
TEEEABNFHIOSE@/A
RERMSBEEE -

(c) W AnFf sE30FT #E B - BLoh Swee
Keongsc £ (A QAR EF) kLoh
LilyZzz £ (Loh Swee Keong#t 4 &)
B 5k ) U BE Target Foundry Sdn.
Bhd.#) & Zh 42 o

34. 7
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R2017F10A268  NEE —HH B A
REREERESSEARRES —HE@EE
RRFE BREABEHIEERIEAE
MENERITEGESENEMERE
e

2018F 6 H8H » & H 12018 F6 A7 H
RIS MR 1% E b At e pe A A B
BRAZFAE80,0005F ZFAD
B e

REZE2019F5A31B 2B BEER » #
fR FOEE /B B A B URER ©
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mEMBRERHE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. XA T BMRR T
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRR ERAROPBMRRTHER
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BIE:
2018
201845
RM'000
°H
Non-Current Asset *RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary company ~ RHB QA RIKIRE 4
Current Assets hREEE
Receivables, deposits and EWRIE e RBAR
prepayment 93
Amount owing from subsidiary e B /B 1 Rl 5RIA
companies (Note a) (Hiita) 17,935
Cash on hand and at bank FHERRTRS 592
Total Current Assets REBEEHAE 18,620
Current Liabilities REBEE
Payable and accrued charges ERRIEREE R 520 141
Amount owing to subsidiary companiesf& i & 2 7] 5 8
(Note a) (Hiita) 2,676 6,427
Total Current Liabilities REBEEAE 3,196 6,568
Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets  F%hs (AE) E&E (2,593) 12,052
Net (Liabilities)/Assets (BfE)/FEE (2,589) 12,056
Capital and Reserves BEARGE
Share capital B0 %= B 19,891
Share premium fig A< 3,382
Accumulated losses (Note b) BETEBB (D) (11,217)
Total Equity A 12,056

150 SK TARGET GROUP LIMITED / Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRERHE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. AR BEMRREK (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
The movements of accumulated loss is as follows: EitEEMESH N T

2019
20194

RM'000

A =X
<A

At beginning of year REHD (11,217)

Loss and total comprehensive loss for FREE k2 EEEAHE
the year (14,645) (5,302)

At end of year NEK (25,862) (11,217)

Notes: W

(@)  The amounts owing from/(to) subsidiary companies are (@) JEU (FER)ME QN ARIEAREK
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B RBRERER

(o)  The loss for the year ended 31 May 2018 and 31 May 2019 (b) H=E2018F5H31H K2019F5H31H
mainly comprises the listing fees of RM2,336,000 and LTFEZBRIESRREFALT
allowance for credit losses recognised against amount # F2,336,000% & K JE 4 B B 2 7 T
owing from subsidiary companies of RM13,629,000 during R E BB #13,629,0009 5 °

the year respectively.

The financial position of the Company was approved and RABNFTBAR N K B EFGHN2019F
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 August BA28 AL AT - A NHES
2019 and are signed on behalf by: REEE:
Loh Swee Keong Chu Kin Ming

K 2 87
Director Independent Non-Executive Director
BEF BUIHNTESE
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ETEHBHE

RESULTS

Revenue WA
Gross profit EH
(Loss)/Profit before BB AT
taxation (B8) /&

(Loss)/Profit for the year & (E18) /% F

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BERAR

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BREE
Net assets FEE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR f#E
Total equity R

Year ended 31 May
HZ5A31HILEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RM'000 RM'000

A+ A+
X B ~X B

29,451 38,194 33,595

7,592 8,761 10,423
(1,905) (1,909) 606
(2,649) (3,090) (1,109)

33,281
9,929

6,566
4,895

23,165
7,478

5,107
3,846

As at 31 May
MW5H31A8

2017

20174

RM'000

A=
~X B

42,076 47,907 28,632

6,642 10,215 10,149
35,434 37,692 18,483
35,434 37,692 18,483

20,862
9,279
11,583

11,583

16,235
7,547
8,688

8,688
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